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PwC Zhong Tian Shen Zi (2007) No.10043

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TIANJIN CAPITAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMPANY LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tianjin Capital Environmental
Protection Company Limited (“the Company”) and its consolidated subsidiaries
(collectively “the Group”), including the balance sheet as at 31 December 2006, the related

income, profit appropriation and cash flow statements for the year 2006.

1. Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
The management of the Company and the Group are responsible for preparing
the financial statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and the Accounting System for Business Enterprises. This responsibility

includes:

(1) designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error;

(2)  selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;

(3)  making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

2. Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with China Auditing Standards.
Those Standards require that we comply with professional ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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FEH#E  Report of the Auditors

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the Auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider the internal control relevant to the preparation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies adopted by the management and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating

the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the above financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Group and the Company as of 31 December 2006,
and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and the

Accounting System for Business Enterprises.
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Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China Li Jun
18 April 2007 Certified Public Accountant
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HRAMF Balance Sheets

Jt 20064 12 A 31 B (R4EH Bt SRR 2
As at 31 December 2006 (Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

i A
Group Company
T 2006 4 J# 2005 4 T 2006 4 J# 2005 4
12H31H 12131 H 127 31H 127131 H
Notes 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
BT AR¥TIL PN S T AR¥TIL PN S T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Y ASSETS
B YR CURRENT ASSETS
HhEe Cash and bank balances 3 780,744 800,294 654,136 544,462
JTLE S Short-term investments — 16,000 — 16,000
JENUIRK Accounts receivable 43,210 67,820 16,473 61,867
HE Rl Other receivables 5 12,150 5,466 83,583 2,914
TR Prepayments to suppliers 11,125 4,016 253 1,467
JRESCA Rl 2K Subsidies receivables 4,780 — — —
PEa s Inventories 6 7,839 11,828 2,699 2,614
T A Prepaid expenses 305 406 283 219
860,153 905,830 757,427 629,543
RWBvE LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
RIMRRER & Long-term equity investments 7 67,660 6,000 685,454 441,036
Il B B FIXED ASSETS AND
e TR CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
[ 0 Fixed assets - cost 4,473,287 2,210,064 3,203,510 1,898,212
W AR Less: Accumulated depreciation (777,706) (644,875) (716,904) (617,171)
38
I 7 Y VR Fixed assets - net 8 3,695,581 1,565,189 2,486,606 1,281,041
[ 2 T A Provision for impairment of fixed assets 9 (3,760) — — —
B P AR Fixed assets - net book value 3,691,821 1,565,189 2,486,606 1,281,041
iR Construction in progress 415,418 1,554,674 302,519 1,475,279
4,107,239 3,119,863 2,789,125 2,756,320
2] e LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES 4 749,973 466,185 749,973 466,185
=2 ies 3 d)i] LONG-TERM PREPAID
EXPENSES 10 107,502 14,766 5,423 7,593
B3 FiNE LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS 11 — 40,802 — —
A TOTAL ASSETS 5,892,527 4,553,446 4,987,402 4,300,677
TR A S BRI A A PR 2 ]

RN



BEAMEE @ Balance Sheets (Continued)

J# 20064 12 A 31 B (R4EH Bt BLHIR S
As at 31 December 2006 (Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

i A
Group Company
Tt 2006 4 J#4 2005 4 J# 2006 47 Jit 2005 4F
12H31H 12031H 12H431H 12J131H
Notes 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2006 2005 2006 2005
B 5E ARMET L ANRWEF T AR¥ETIC N S STH
£ BB RORE 2 LIABILITIES AND SHARE- Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
HOLDERS’ EQUITY
TR £ A CURRENT LIABILITIES
S Short-term loans 12 691,000 595,000 676,000 590,000
JEATHR K Accounts payable 13 9,852 8,414 3,563 2,774
TR AR Advances from customers 14 79,417 38,594 28,901 27,385
JEAS A 2 Welfare payable 9,541 9,099 8,138 8,500
JEASF IR Dividend payable 15 1,299 1,656 1,299 1,656
JEAH AL Bond interest payable 19 5,853 4,739 5,853 4,739
JREAS T 4 Taxes payable 16 71,452 76,407 67,328 75,453
T2 A Accrued expenses 11,879 7,266 7,805 6,050
HERERTR Other payables 17 121,141 129,043 89,383 111,894
—AF R B R A Portion of long-term borrowings
due within one year 18 99,250 62,500 74,000 60,000
—FENERMAR  Portion of long-term liabilities due
within one year 20 118,464 91,828 16,364 —
1,219,148 1,024,546 978,634 888,451
=3 hER0s LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
R Long-term loans 18 1,619,500 642,500 1,071,000 575,000
JERHiE 5 Convertible bonds 19 372,062 372,097 372,062 372,097
RUIEATR Long-term payables 21 163,636 180,000 163,636 180,000
2,155,198 1,194,597 1,606,698 1,127,097
A TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,374,346 2,219,143 2,585,332 2,015,548
A YRR 2 MINORITY INTERESTS 116,111 49,132 — —
IR 2 SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
il &S Share capital 22 1,330,666 1,330,658 1,330,666 1,330,658
BANT Capital reserve fund 23 75,209 75,182 75,209 75,182
B AR General reserves 23 220,356 200,721 217,734 200,721
AR BE A Undistributed profits 24 775,839 678,610 778,461 678,568
2,402,070 2,285,171 2,402,070 2,285,129
RN B 55 J 5 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 5,892,527 4,553,446 4,987,402 4,300,677

TP e at R G A A at IR ALER 2> o The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

BHE B R e F 12403 Ma Baiyu Gu Qifeng Chen Yinxing
AFAEN FEEE TR EEAN  Company Person in charge of Person in charge of
THERAEEAN Representative accounting function accounting department
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FIWFE Income Statements

#5.2006 4F 12 1 31 HIRAFEE (R48H B Erat BRI AR S
For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

i A
Group Company

2006 4 )% 2005 R 2006 4 )% 2005 4F

Notes 2006 2005 2006 2005

Bt 5 ARWT I NG ARWT NG ST

Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

EX_£3 T/UN Income from principal operations 25 807,381 611,835 657,553 571,291
W R A Less: Cost for principal operations 25 (330,438) (186,494) (226,375) (149,889)
T TR 4 A Business tax and surcharges 26 (37,283) (31,340) (36,165) (31,421)

EE B Profit from principal operations 439,660 394,001 395,013 389,981
s HEEEAE Add: Profit from other operations 3,081 7,570 6,972 8,568
W BEEA Less: Selling Expense (186) (675) — —
EHE Administrative expenses (89,264) (55,627) (54,165) (45,522)
B — R Financial expense — net 27 (108,030) (79,301) (96,283) (75,935)
e Operating profit 245,261 265,968 251,537 277,092
s BeElE (K Add: Investment gain/(loss) 28 4,474 — 2,047 (9,634)
PR LN Add: Subsidy Income 8,000 1,000 — —
BEIMIA Non-operating income 20 570 11 570
W EEINLH Less: Non-operating expenses (4,730) (872) (461) (873)
pIBEFESE Total profit 253,025 266,666 253,134 267,155
B TSR Less: Income tax 2(v) (85,189) (92,648) (83,001) (91,340)
s SER IR Add: Minority interests 2,255 1,839 — —
A Net profit 25 170,091 175,857 170,133 175,815

B e TR A A G FHRERMARI > o The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

LSRR B R 0 £ ] 203 Ma Baiyu Gu Qifeng Chen Yinxing
KEAEAN EEGE TR AE AN Company Representative  Person in charge of Person in charge of
TEMARA accounting function accounting department
R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

RN



A9/ LK  Profit Appropriation Statement

#% 2006 712 /1 31 HILAERE (RRERH B & et A4
For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

o A
Group Company

2006 4 2005 47 2006 47 2005 4

Notes 2006 2005 2006 2005

BiFRE ARWT5E ARWT T ARWToE ARWT T

Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

EX_ £ 1IN Income from principal operations 25 807,381 611,835 657,553 571,291
o R A Less: Cost for principal operations 25 (330,438) (186,494) (226,375) (149,889)
e Rl Business tax and surcharges 26 (37,283) (31,340) (36,165) (31,421)

EE AR Profit from principal operations 439,660 394,001 395,013 389,981
RN Add: Profit from other operations 3,081 7,570 6,972 8,568
W B EE N Less: Selling Expense (186) (675) — —
EIE A Administrative expenses (89,264) (55,627) (54,165) (45,522)
BB — R Financial expense — net 27 (108,030) (79,301) (96,283) (75,935)
e i Operating profit 245,261 265,968 251,537 277,092
s BeEEE, (K Add: Investment gain/(loss) 28 4,474 — 2,047 (9,634)
PR LN Add: Subsidy Income 8,000 1,000 — —
BEIMIA Non-operating income 20 570 11 570
W BN Less: Non-operating expenses (4,730) (872) (461) (873)
FI AR Tortal profit 253,025 266,666 253,134 267,155
W PSR Less: Income tax 2(v) (85,189) (92,648) (83,001) (91,340)
s D RIBR Add: Minority interests 2,255 1,839 — —
TR Net profit 25 170,091 175,857 170,133 175,815
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TP e et R G S A at IR ALAR /> o The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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B4eWia#R Cash Flow Statements

ROETE B BB

ST - SR O R B4
W YL A TR A B R Bl

BEMADG

BRI~ e S B

SORTARI T LR B TS A B4

SIS B2

SRR E SRR B A B B
B /et

SR W A Ay B A R

B RE E AL B S

e [l 45 AR A B

B e ) B
BEMADG

B 8 5 P T ST B
g VBT S AT B4

BLER /et
BT B A A 1 B 4 U VR
HERBEANB SRS
B BT RE Bl 4

TEFICE 3 4
e I Y PR A7 K

B AN

TEBEH IS B4

3 BRI SR S o B

BB B S AT Y B

SR B AT

AT AR BB S B A B R 4
B /et

RS A0 2 Y L R

BT (WD) /W

A 2006 4 12 7 31 HIRAERE (R EEHHRAIRR)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from rendering of goods and services
Other cash received relating to operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid for goods and services

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

Taxes paid

Other cash paid relating to operating activities
Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from investing activities
Net cash received from disposal
of fixed assets

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets
Cash paid to invest in new subsidiaries

Sub-total of cash outflows
Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from investments by
minority shareholders

Cash received from borrowings

Cash received from bank deposit

Sub-total of cash inflows
Cash repayments of amounts borrowed
Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profits
Cash payments of interest expenses
Cash payments as bank deposit
Other cash payments relating to financing activities
Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash

R ARG A B2 7]
SEBAFEH

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

&Pt A
2006 4F Ji 2006 4
Group Company
2006 2006
AR¥WTIE AR¥WETIE
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
594,529 427,592
10,338 33,397
604,867 460,989
(173,738) (113,171)
(54,889) (36,825)
(129,481) (127,291)
(49,297) (114,049)
(407,405) (391,336)
197,462 69,653
16,000 16,000
1,534 548
17,534 16,548
(1,183,417) (171,093)
(54,000) (242,371)
(1,237,417) (413,464)
(1,219,883) (396,916)
77,233 —
2,044,770 1,506,000
3,000 3,000
2,125,003 1,509,000
(935,020) (910,000)
(53,584) (53,584)
(121,378) (104,329)
(8,818) —
(9,150) (1,150)
(1,127,950) (1,069,063)
997,053 439,937
(25,368) 112,674




A 2006 4E 12 7 31 HIRAERE GROE B GBI 4R )

Cash Flow Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

Bl @

ahF A
2006 42 ) 2006 4 Ji
Group Company
Supplementary Information 2006 2006
W7 R ARWTI ARWTI
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
(i) 5 R S 6 L S B B A (i) Reconciliation of net profit to net cash flows
from operating activities
[ERALE Net profit 170,091 170,133
m/ GE) Add/(Less):
"}‘iﬁﬁ‘ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ N Minority interests (2,255) —
FHRIEE {Jﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ Provision for asset impairment 7,760 —
Jé 7 %féfﬁ‘% B Depreciation of fixed assets 135,656 102,155
i R Losses on disposal of fixed assets 971 461
R T Amortisation of long term prepaid expenses 10,259 2,251
it} 77{3:( A Interest expenses — net 112,941 97,837
Bglat Investment gain (4,474) (2,047)
P ibEy | Increase in inventories (11) (85)
Pl I (I Decrease /(Increase) of prepaid expenses 101 (64)
fﬁgﬁ%ﬁ Jis Increase of accrued expenses 4,613 1,755
ﬁ%%ﬂ{ﬂ%lﬂllﬁ H 3 Increase in operating receivables (275,997) (321,312)
R TEREGTIE R (3 Increase in operating payables 37,807 18,569
KA TL A AR B H A VR AR Net cash flows from operating activities 197,462 69,653
(i) HEF ) REN () (i)  Net (decrease)/increase in cash (Note 3)
B R A N 1 Cash at end of the year 718,744 601,136 —
W BE AR R Less: Cash at beginning of the year (744,112) (488,462) 5y
B4 Gad) Net (decrease)/increase in cash (25,368) 112,674

PRIt R I R 2 A G R R AL 7 -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

EAE i e v B Aty Ma Baiyu Gu Qifeng Chen Yinxing
NEIREN TEEE @i aEAN  Company Representative  Person in charge of Person in charge of

THEMEEA accounting function accounting department

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limite

Annual Report 2006




144

5l FMEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

1 An i kB EEH
RKEAIZERRIBRARA T (TAAF D)
IR 1993 46 A 8 HfE Fh#E A RALFIE
([ ) GRS R IRA R o A
2 R BR IR Mk 2 vl R v B L
FERE B 76 SRAIETR IR K E o AR JH
Forl ([ASEE ]) BLURF Y S8 B 04
T5KERE > BAKHELK > oK RIER A4
T B R WSO o SRS o

DUR A B BB I A st

(a) TGKEEBLEH;
15K PZ Bk
KA B ek - AR EEELL TS
7K i FR R 5 K 3 AR -

CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited (the “Company”)
was established on 8 June 1993 in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) as a
joint stock limited company. The Company’s address is TCEP Building, 76 Weijin
South Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, the PRC. The activities of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) include sewage water processing, tap water supply,
production of recycled water, construction materials and operation of road toll

stations.

The operation mode of the Group’s principal activities is described below:

(@  Sewage water processing
Water Processing Agreement:
Pursuant to relevant agreements, the Group currently provides sewage water

processing services via the following plants:

TA A T H %R
Plant Location Contract Date Customer
VR4 BE R RT A AT R B 1]
Contracts entered into in previous years but still in force:
PNE 2000 410 1 10 H PREAIE Y O
Dong Jiao, Tianjin 10 October 2000 Tianjin Sewage Company (“TSC”)
PREFiSS 2000410 A 10 H PRI A
Ji Zhuang Zi, Tianjin 10 October 2000 TSC
K s e 2000 £ 10 H 10 H PREIE 3/ A
Xian Yang Lu, Tianjin 10 October 2000 TSC
K des 2000 4810 J1 10 H PNEIIELY A
Bei Cang, Tianjin 10 October 2000 TSC
M 51 20044F 9 A 16 H BB 2
Guiyang, Guizhou 16 September 2004 Guiyang City Administration Bureau (“GCAB”)
L5 20054 6 J1 13 H FEGRES
Baoying, Jiangsu 13 June 2005 Baoying Construction Bureau (“BCB”)
LR B 2005 4712 A 18 H RS LA G
Fuyang, Anhui 18 December 2005 Fuyang Construction Committee (“FCC”)
K 2005412 A 25 H it 7 T A DK A )
Qujing, Yunnan 25 December 2005 Qujing City Water General Company (“QCWGC”)
WL B 2005 412 /129 H e e
Honghu, Hubei 29 December 2005 Honghu Construction Bureau (‘HCB”)
2006 “FHTBATHI 1] -
New contract entered into in 2006:
WL B 2006 411 4 20 H B PR BR 22 )
Hangzhou, Zhejiang 20 November 2006 Hangzhou Sewage Company (“HSC”)
R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH



b Bt AR )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
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Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

1 COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued)

(@)

Sewage water processing (Continued)
The principal terms and the pricing formula as set out in the relevant

contracts are briefly summarised below:

Dong Jiao
The Group will have full recovery of actual operating costs, including
depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets, excluding interest expenses

and foreign exchange gains or losses and at minimum:

() earns a return of 15% per annum of the average balance of the
monthly net book value of fixed assets (as defined in the agreement)

of the plants; and

(i)  incentive pricing adjustments will be made for cost saving and/or
when actual processing volume exceeds the minimum processing

volume stipulated in the agreement.

Ji Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang

Based on the supplementary agreement reached with TSC on 10 March
2006, the Company is entitled to sewage processing fee at Rmb1.93 per
cubic meter from the completion date of construction to the completion
date of inspection of Ji Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang plants.
Processing fee after the completion of inspection of these three plants will

be collected from TSC using the same principle as for Dong Jiao plant.

The water quality of sewage water treatment of the three projects mentioned
above basically reached the required standards in January 2006. The three
projects was not completed in early 2007 as expected, but according to
current estimate, the completion is expected to be no later than the end of

2007.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limite
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M EE  Notes to the Financial Statements

1 AnflinKkBEEE 4

(a)

GKBERES (%)

Je b5 K o8 SR :
B2 L0.60 T,/ K 112
TG/ S RANE W ERE VR SR RS
KBRS 2 A I

() bR s B B A T
A7 I A AR s
WO R e TR )
I3~ S8y~ BUFBORIE
KA H R TAREE ;

(i)  BREMNSS > HAh b m & F €
AN AR IR K TS K R
B I E R AT
HBEHOKE » Q5K B
HRIEPOK RESH -

(i) EMTGK IR I A8
FIAEAR > BT i SR R Bk
HETEA A HE A X R iR
fEAE o FHEAX AT 215 KE
T SETS A T A PR P A
A > BRI AT A ~ 4
B SR 8% MR
B AR o

CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

1  COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued)

(@

Sewage water processing (Continued)

Other sewage processing plants:

Initial sewage water processing price ranges from Rmb0.60 to Rmb1.12 per

cubic meter. In addition:

(ii)

(iii)

processing price as determined above may be revised pursuant to the
price adjustment formula agreed in the contract after considering
various factors including renovation of equipment, additional
investment, power and energy and labour force, and other significant

changes of government policy;

except for Guizhou, customers in other regions guaranteed a
minimum processing volume. If the actual volume is lower than the
guaranteed volume, processing fee will be settled based on the

guaranteed volume.

Following the official operation of the Guizhou Sewage Water
Treatment Plant for two years, the initial price will be determined by
both parties using the price determination formula stipulated in the
relevant agreement. The price determination formula allows the actual
operating costs to be covered in full by sewage water treatment
operations, including operating cost, depreciation, income tax and a

return of 8% on budgeted net assets of the plant.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH



b Bt AR )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)
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Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

1 COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued)

(b)

Construction of sewage water processing plants

The construction of Ji Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang was completed
in late 2005. The Company did not incur sewage water treatment plant
construction fee in the year 2006. The background to the relevant agreements

of sewage water treatment plants since 2003 is detailed below:

Construction Agreement:

Pursuant to an agreement (“Construction Agreement”) between the
Company and TSC on 24 September 2001, the Company is to provide
construction services to TSC in respect of three plants of Xian Yang Lu, Ji

Zhuang Zi and Bei Cang,

The principal terms of the Construction Agreement are summarised below:

. a fee will be paid by TSC during the period of construction as a
reward to remunerate the Company for accepting the responsibility
to construct the sewage plants. The aggregate construction fees payable

to the Company amount to approximately Rmb1,069 million;

. a fee is payable by TSC in advance on a monthly basis according to
the percentage of completion of the respective construction projects
estimated by the Company. The percentage of completion of each
project will be adjusted on a quarterly basis according to the

certifications issued by qualified independent surveyors or engineers;

. the Company is responsible for the funding of the construction cost

of these plants; and

. upon commencement of operations of the three sewage water
processing plants, the rights and obligations between the Company
and TSC will follow the terms as specified in the Water Processing

Agreement as applicable to the Tianjin plants (Note 1(a)).
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

1 COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued)
(b)  Construction of sewage water processing plants
Transfer Agreement:
Also, on 24 September 2001, respective agreements (“Transfer Agreements”)
were signed whereby the Company would acquire the above three plants
from TSC and would be responsible for the construction and management
of the remaining uncompleted portion of the plants. The transfers were

deemed completed on 30 October 2002.

Co-operative Agreement:
On 25 August 2003, the Company entered into an agreement with TSC

(“Co-operative Agreement”) whereby:

. the Company would be responsible for the overall execution of the

construction of the three plants;

. TSC would be responsible for making use of the original loans from
two foreign banks (the “Foreign Loans”) to fund certain property,

plant and equipment used in these plants;

. TSC would sell to the Company these Foreign Loans funded property,
plant and equipment after their installation and the issuance of
verification reports, at their carrying value. The construction fee
charged by the Company pursuant to the above mentioned
Construction Agreement, would include the cost of these property,

plant and equipment as the base; and

. the Company would be responsible for the repairs and maintenance
of these property, plant and equipment during the construction period
of the sewage water treatment plants before the transfer of the aforesaid

property, plant and equipment to the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

1 COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued)

(©)

Road toll stations
There have been no changes in the terms of the agreements below since

they were entered into in 2003 and the background is as follows:

Prior to 2003, the Company owned the right to set up toll stations at the
junctions between the Tianjin city roads and expressways leading to the
city, and to collect tolls generally from non-Tianjin registered motor vehicles
(other than those exempted by law) passing these toll stations. The right

was for a term expiring on 28 February 2029.

During 2003, following the reform of the public transportation network,
the Tianjin Municipal Government relocated certain toll stations, including
those of the Company, to the boundary of the interstate highways
surrounding Tianjin. The collection of tolls from non-Tianjin registered
vehicles was then centralised at a Tianjin Toll Collection Office (“Toll
Collection Office”) set up by Tianjin Municipal Engineering Bureau
(“TMEB”). As a result, the Company’s toll stations were demolished since
31 May 2003 and TMEB agreed to compensate the Company principally

as follows:

. a one-off cash compensation by TMEB equivalent to the net book
value of the assets of the demolished toll stations as at 30 June 2003

of about Rmb33 million;

. compensation for loss in revenue, during the period from 31 May
2003 to the date of completion of construction of the new toll stations,
equivalent to the revenue received in the same period of last year of

about Rmb5.5 million net of expenses recognized in June 2003; and
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

1  COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued)

() Road toll stations (Continued)

Company was granted the collection right of six new toll stations
from 1 July 2003 to 28 February 2029. However, the Company is
not allowed to transfer, lease or pledge the right to other parties

without TMEB’s consent.

In tandem, the Company entered into an agreement (“Toll Collection

Agreement”) with Toll Collection Office on 24 July 2003 with following

principal terms:

the Company engaged the Toll Collection Office to collect the tolls
at the six new toll stations on its behalf for which it will pay a

management fee;

the Company is to receive the actual tolls collected from the six new
stations for the corresponding period/year, subject to minimum toll
fee for each period/year based on the forecast traffic flow and tolls
for the corresponding period/year as stipulated in a traffic flow and
tolls forecast report for the six new toll stations issued by a professional

consulting company in July 2003;

any shortfall to the Company between actual and the agreed
minimum will be compensated to the Company by the Toll Collection

Office.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

1 AFf R EERE o) 1 COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continucd)
(@) HARKPKEH (d)  Tap water supply
R IR B TSRl (e K A A w4 Pursuant to agreement reached with Qujing City Water General Company,
FTH Bk - A R 7 Rl AL the subsidiary of the Company, Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd., provides
KB A PR rlE A g o B ok tap water supply service via the Yunnan Qujing tap water processing plant.
7K FE R A B AR AR - 7 Tap water supply price is Rmb1.1 per cubic meter for the first three years
20064F 1 11 HERAIH =FA - starting from 1 January 2006, and will increase in stage to Rmb1.25 per
HAKHOK B S 1.1 78/ cubic meter by 2036. In addition:
K BRI I B 2036 4FHR R
12570/ )k o diH
() BB AR IR (i) Supply price as determined above may be revised after considering
[F] 40 2 (Y P AR 95 Bk B various cost factors based on contract terms;
JIAR K] 3R B 5 8y i 3 A7
i
(i) T PR AN W AR (i)  Qujing City Water General Company guarantees a minimum supply
N )RR B K B A K Ak volume. If the actual volume is lower than the guaranteed volume,
o R ERAOK ERR L supply fee will be settled based on the guaranteed volume. Lol
PEfRK R RIBOKIRES 2%
IRHEPROKBEH -
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(@  Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and the “Accounting System

for Business Enterprises” promulgated by the Central Government of the

People’s Republic of China.

As at 31 December 2006, the Group’s and the Company’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately Rmb 359 million and Rmb
221 million respectively. Despite the forgoing, these financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis, because the Directors of the
Company believe that the undrawn bank facilities are sufficient to support

the Group and the Company to meet their respective liabilities as and when

they fall due.

(b)  Financial year

The financial year is from 1 January to 31 December of each calendar year.

() Reporting currency

The reporting currency is Renminbi (“Rmb”).

(d)  Basis of accounting
The accrual concept is adopted as basis of accounting. Unless for special
circumstance, assets are initially recorded at their acquired costs, and

subsequently adjusted for impairment, if any.

(e)  Cash
For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash comprises cash in hand and

deposits repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

()

Receivables and provision for doubtful debts

Receivables comprise trade and other receivables.

The Group adopts the provision method to account for potential doubtful

debrs. Receivables are stated in net value after deducting provision for

doubtful debts.

Provision for doubtful debts is made after the evaluation of the recoverability
of receivables. When there is evidence that receivables are not recoverable,
such as in the event that the entity is deregistered, bankrupt, has negative
assets and insufficient working capital etc., the corresponding receivables
are recognised as bad debts and net off the corresponding amounts of

provision for doubtful debts.

Inventories
Inventories comprise raw materials, work in progress, finished goods, spare

parts and consumables.

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Spare parts and consumables are stated at

cost less provision for obsolescence.

Cost is determined on the weighed average basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and an
allocation of all production overheads incurred based on normal operating
capacity. Provision for declines in the values of inventories is determined
on item-by-item basis when the carrying value of the inventories is higher
than their net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined on the
basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated distribution and selling

expenses.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(h)  Long-term equity investments
Long-term equity investments are equity investments held for more than

one year.

Cost of long-term equity investments are accounted for based on the actual
amounts paid. The Group adopts the equity method to account for the
invested entities in which the Company holds 20% or more of the voting
share capital, or holds less than 20% of the voting share capital but has
significant influence on the entities’ operating decisions. The Group adopts
the cost method to account for the invested entities in which the Company
holds 20% or less of the voting share capital, or holds more than 20% of the
voting share capital but has no significant influence on the entities’ operating

decisions.

The Group adopts the equity method to account for its subsidiary in the
accounts of the parent company. A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the
Company holds directly or indirectly more than 50% of the voting share
capital, has the power of decision making on the financing and operating
strategies of the enterprise and accordingly is able to obtain benefits from

its operating activities.

(i) Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation/depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation of land use rights, other than those in relation to the toll
stations business, is calculated to write off their cost, on a straight line basis

over the period of land use rights of 50 years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

()

Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation of the road and amortisation of land use rights in relation to
the toll stations business are calculated to write off their cost on a units-of-
usage basis whereby the depreciation and amortisation are provided based
on the share of estimated traffic volume for a particular period over the
projected total traffic volume throughout the period of 30 years for which

the right to operate the road is granted.

Depreciation of leasehold buildings and structures is calculated to write-off
their cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, on a straight-line basis
over their expected useful lives. The periods adopted for depreciation range

from 10 to 50 years.

Other tangible fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off the
cost of the assets, less estimated residual value, over their estimated useful

lives on a straight line basis. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles and others

10-20 years
5-15 years
The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant

asset, and is recognised in the income statement.

Major costs incurred in restoring property, plant and equipment to their
normal working condition are charged to the income statement. The expenses
relating to improvements of property, plant and equipment are capitalised
and amortised over their expected useful lives to the Group. Repair and

maintenance expenses are charged to the income statement as incurred.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(i) Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)
Individual assets for which there are indications that the carrying values are
higher than their recoverable amounts, arising from the occurrence of events
or changes in circumstances, are reviewed for impairment. If the carrying
value of such assets is higher than the recoverable amount, the excess is

recognized as an impairment loss.

When there is an indication that the need for an impairment provision
recorded in a prior year no longer exists or has decreased, which result in
the recoverable amount exceeding the carrying amount of the asset, the
provision for impairment loss is reversed to the extent of the amount of
impairment loss recognized in prior years. The increased carrying amount
of the assets should not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior

years.

() Construction in progress
Construction in progress represents fixed assets under construction or being
installed and is stated at cost. Cost comprises original cost of plant and
equipment, installation, construction and other direct costs which include
interest cost on specific borrowings used to finance the capital assets, prior
to the date of reaching the expected usable condition. Construction in
progress is transferred to fixed assets when the asset has been substantially

completed and reaches the expected usable condition.

The impairment of construction in progress is stated as that in fixed assets

(Note 2(1)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(k)

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include 30-year asset beneficiary right and other
prepayments that should be amortized over more than one year (excluding
one year). Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized on the straight-line
basis over the expected beneficial periods and are presented at cost net of

accumulated amortization.

Expenses incurred during the Company’s pre-operating period are recorded
as long-term prepaid expenses and will be expensed in the first month of

commercial operations.

Borrowing costs

Except the issuance expense (Note 2(0)) of convertible bonds, interest cost,
ancillary costs, and exchange differences incurred in connection with specific
borrowings obtained for the acquisition or construction of fixed assets are
capitalised as costs of the assets beginning when the capital expenditures
and borrowing costs have been incurred and the activities to enable the
assets to reach their expected usable condition have commenced. The
capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the construction in progress
has reached the asset’s expected usable condition. Borrowing costs incurred

thereafter are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

In each capitalisation period, the amount of interest cost included in the
borrowing costs to be capitalised should be determined according to the
weighted average amount of accumulated expenditures incurred for the
acquisition or construction of a fixed asset up to the end of the current
period and the weighted average interest rate of related borrowings, not
exceeding the interest cost of the specific borrowings actually incurred during
the current period. Borrowing costs such as exchange differences and
significant ancillary costs in connection with specific borrowings in foreign
currency are capitalised based on actual amount in the period in which they

are incurred.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(' Borrowing costs (Continued)
Borrowing costs in connection with other borrowings are recognised as

expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

(m)  Provisions
Provisions for product warranties, external guarantees and pending litigation
are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of
past transactions or events, and it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be

reliably estimated.

Provisions are determined using best estimates based on historical experience.

(n)  Research and development expenses
Research and development expenses are charged to the income statement as

incurred.

(o)  Convertible bonds
Convertible bonds are classified as liabilities and are stated at principal

amount.

The difference between issuing cost of the bonds and the interest income
derived during the issuing period is amortised over the bonds’ issue period
on a straight line basis. Interest expense for the bonds is accrued periodically.
Interest and issuance cost are capitalized or expensed according to the
purpose/use of the issuance proceeds. Upon conversion into the Company’s
share, the converted quantity of share times par value is recognized as share
capital whilst difference between share capital converted and par value of
the bonds is recorded in capital surplus. If redeemed or repurchased in
advance, bond payable will be offset in proportion whilst corresponding

issuance cost will be charged to profit and loss accounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(p)

Employee social security and benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organized by relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC. The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligation of all existing and
future retired employees payable under these plans. Contributions to these

plans are expensed as incurred.

The Group provides housing fund based on certain percentage of the wages.
The housing fund is paid to social security organisation, and the
corresponding expenses are expensed or included in the cost of sales for the

current year.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for using the liability method, in respect of
timing differences between profit as computed for taxation purposes and
profit as stated in the accounts to the extent that a liability or an asset is

expected to be payable or receivable in the foreseeable future.

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Rmb at
the exchange rates stipulated by the People’s Bank of China prevailing at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into Rmb at the exchange

rates stipulated by the People’s Bank of China at the balance sheet date.

Except for the exchange differences attributable to specific foreign currency
borrowings and arising during the period of acquisition and construction
of fixed assets are capitalised, all other exchange differences arising are taken

to the income statement.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(s)  Revenue recognition
() Revenue from sewage water processing and tap water supply services

is recognised when services are rendered.

(i)  Toll fee income is recognised when fees are received from road users

or compensated from collection office, if any.

(iii)  Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer,
the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold, and it is probable that the economic benefit associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group and the relevant revenue

and costs can be measured reliably.

(iv)  Interest income is calculated based on the period of the principal

deposited and the effective interest rates.

() Leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks and rewards
incident to ownership of a leased asset. An operating lease is a lease other

than a finance lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(t) Leases

(1) Finance lease
At the inception of a lease, the leased assets are recorded at an amount
equal to the lower of the carrying amount of the leased asset originally
recorded in the books of the lessor and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, and recognise a long-term liability at an
amount equal to the gross amount of the minimum lease payments.
The difference between the recorded amount of the leased asset and
the liability is recognised as unrecognised finance charges and
amortised during the lease term on a straight line basis. Depreciation
policy for leased assets are consistent with that for depreciable assets

which are owned by the group.

(i) Operating lease
Lease payments under an operating lease should be recognised as an
expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

()  Taxation

(1) Income tax
Corporate income tax is accounted for using the tax liability method
under the effective tax method. The tax rate ranges from 7.5% to

33% of taxable income.

(i1)  Business tax

The business tax rate is 5% of gross service income.

(iii)  Value added tax
The value added tax (VAT) payable is calculated as 17% of taxable
sales, net of deductible input VAT.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

()

Taxation (Continued)

(1) Government surcharges
Government surcharges comprise of city construction tax and
education surcharge, calculated respectively at the tax rate of 7%

and 3% of the amount of business tax or value added tax.

Related parties
Related parties refer to state-owned companies or other companies under

the supervisory control of TMEB (Note 29).

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated accounts, including the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries, are prepared in accordance with Cai Kuai Zi (1995) No. 11
“Temporary Regulations for Preparation of Consolidated Accounts” issued

by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.

The Company consolidates the subsidiary’s revenue, cost, profit from the
date of obtaining the effective control of a subsidiary, and will cease the
consolidation from the date of losing effective control. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in the consolidated
accounts. Minority interests represent the portion of the equity interests of

the subsidiaries which does not belong to the Group.

When there is inconsistency in accounting policies between the subsidiaries
and the Company, and when the discrepancies arising from the inconsistency
have a material impact on the consolidated accounts, they will be adjusted

. , . -
according to the Company’s accounting policies.
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(R B st AR )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

3 BE¥ESE 3 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
b A
Group Company
J# 2006 4% J#% 2005 4F J# 2006 4 J#4 2005 4
12H31H 12431 H 12H31H 12731H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
AR NG T AR¥ETI ANRHETIC
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
B Cash on hand 191 234 3 2
ATHE Cash in bank 780,553 800,060 654,133 544,460
Hrpr e Including
GHERIFEHEAES (51 @G) -Special funds for construction
in progress (note (a)) 103,846 281,742 96,022 266,329
fRiEE (FERE(D)) -Bank deposits (note (b)) 62,000 56,182 53,000 56,000
780,744 800,294 654,136 544,462
(a) GRTREMES T E AR R RSl (a) The special funds for construction in progress represent the unutilised balances of the special
1%%iﬁ§ﬁ I%‘j*{ﬁ}:ﬁ mﬁ?jﬁ%ﬁﬁ%gﬂ ° lOaﬂS fOl' Se'Wage water pl'OCeSSing Pl'OjeC[S.
(b) 20064 12 431 H » fReE &R T EaiEA (b) Balance as at 31 December 2006 includes the deposit of Rmb47 million (2005: Rmb47 million)
N ROR —FRERATE B s8R0 7 Sy A m i 4 in a bank held as guarantee for the issuance of the Company’s convertible bonds. The remaining
B R ORI PR AR S T A R 47,000 78 balance of Rmb15 million (2005: Rmb9.182 million) mainly represented deposit for project
(2005%F = 47,0007 70) 5 HERFUEEEIEA bids.

BB R G R A PR3 A7 LR AR
15,000 TJC (20054F © 9,182 FJL) =

SR B e R B a4 For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash comprises the following:
b A
Group Company
J# 2006 4% Ji% 2005 4F J# 2006 4 Ji% 2005 4F
12H31H 1231 H 12H31H 12731H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
AR ANRBET T AR¥ETIE ANRHETIC
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Hias Cash and bank balances 780,744 800,294 654,136 544,462
W PR Less: Restricted deposits (62,000) (56,182) (53,000) (56,000)
FR A B4 i R Cash shown on the cash
flow statement 718,744 744,112 601,136 488,462
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CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

VB B sk ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
JESURZIAA T ¢ Details of the trade receivables are set out as follows:
Pk A
Group Company
J# 2006 47 J#t 2005 4F J# 2006 4 J# 2005 4F
12H31H 12531 H 12431H 12731 H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
AR¥T NG S T ARMET I8 NS T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
FENCHE KA 7 Due from TSC
— 5K B A — Revenue from sewage water
processing services 283,788 45,544 283,788 45,544
— 5K R PR A — Revenue from sewage water
processing plants
construction services 466,185 466,185 466,185 466,185
749,973 511,729 749,973 511,729
oAty Others 43,210 22,276 16,473 16,323
793,183 534,005 766,446 528,052
W A T Y Less: Sewage water processing
57K R BB U AR fee income and sewage
157K I TR S A water treatment plant
construction fee income
intended for asset swap (749,973) (466,185) (749,973) (466,185)
43,210 67,820 16,473 61,867

FERBEURA T B EALF 5% (F
5%) VAEFRRFE A9 FBESRAN S o

HE A VR ek - BEK A7) € (0 A B
SC LRBRICE (A 2007 EIE) > %
HETEEETAAA (b)) - %
2007 4E 4 H > AL mIBBEK A w R
ST B R R o PRI HE KA A R
g AR AR A A R -
20064F 12131 H - G SL & 1 B 8R4 1y
ANRHE 7,50 (0 o B - 2 AR5 RE
PRAK 2 R B T A0 8 e A 0 2
e fm]

As at 31 December 2006, there were no accounts receivables from any of the

Company’s shareholders who hold 5% or more of voting shares.

Under the Co-operative Agreement, TSC will sell certain of its assets to the Company
upon completion and verification expected to be by end 2007 (Note 1(b)). In
April 2007, an agreement on a repayment plan was reached whereby TSC will,
subject to the appoval of the shareholders of the Company, use these assets to settle
fees owed to the Company. As at 31 December 2006, cost of these assets amount
to about RMB750 million. As such, the Directors believe that the amount due

fromTSC is fully recoverable by assets swap.
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Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)
Following the repayment plan, the balance of Rmb750 million (2005: Rmb460

million) representing sewage water processing fee and construction fee income has
been reclassified to long-term receivables. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable

following reclassification is as follows:

i A
Group Company
J# 2006 4% J# 2005 4F J# 2006 4F J# 2005 4F
12H31H 12H31H 120 31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
ARWTIE AR¥ET T ARWT I ARWEF 7T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
1&LIA Within 1 year 43,210 67,820 16,473 61,867
12 4F Between 1 and 2 years 749,973 466,185 749,973 466,185
JRENS BRI Net accounts receivable 793,183 534,005 766,446 528,052
JC 2 HE WOk OTHER RECEIVABLES

HE R £ B — LR K
BREA IR AN ] 5% (5 5%) UL B3
PRERR 1 1) IR BRI R o

As at 31 December 20006, the ageing of majority of other receivables are aged
within one year and there were no other receivables from any of the shareholders

who hold 5% or more of the Company’s voting shares.
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

6 f#11 6 INVENTORIES
ahF A
Group Company
J# 2006 4F Ji% 2005 4F J# 2006 4 Ji% 2005 4
12H431H 12431 H 12H31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
AR¥TI ANRBETIC ARWTIL ANREET T
Rmb’000 Rmb000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
JER R Raw materials 4,233 2,918 2,610 2,510
JEE Finished goods 5,424 6,423 — —
TR AL E 5 A Spare parts and consumables 2,182 2,487 89 104
11,839 11,828 2,699 2,614
W A7 B A Provision for impairment
of inventories (4,000) — — —
7,839 11,828 2,699 2,614
7 RIBHE B 7  LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS
b A
Group Company
#2006 4 J#4 2005 4F #2006 4F J# 2005 4F
12431H 12H31H 12/31H 12H31 A
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
ARWTI NGNS ARWTI NGNS
Rmb’000 Rmb000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
FoatE Investment in subsidiaries
(71 (a)) (note (a)) — — 681,454 437,036
s d Associated Company
(7R (b)) (note (b)) 58,474 — — —
HERMIBER G Other long-term equity investments
210 (note (c)) 9,186 6,000 4,000 4,000
67,660 6,000 685,454 441,036

AR A B ST -

The movement of equity investment in subsidiaries for year 2006 is set out below:

2005 4 2006 4

12A31H 12H31H

31 December ARSI 31 December

2005 Addition 2006

N ST NG ST ARWT

Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000

JE i A Initial cost 450,380 242,371 692,751
R4 B TaEE) Accumulated changes in equity (13,344) 2,047 (11,297)
W Ve Book value 437,036 244,418 681,454

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)
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W BEBE (5

7

(a)

PR

AR T4 T A REAEL
Al o BRATAIERR (FH) AR
NEHER LAY » ARFIET
FAE B A R T o

/)
//}

i B 2E K 5 A7 PR A )
Quijing Capital Water Co., Ltd.

KH KA R A7
Tianjin Water Recycling Co.,Ltd

MRS AT PR A
Guizhou Capital Water Co., Ltd.

RAAIZEBRR GFiE) AIRA T

Tianjin Capital Environmental

Protection (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.

BRI A A
Fuyang Capital Water Co., Ltd.

BRI KT AR A
Chibi Capital Water Co., Ltd.

HEAIRKB AR AR
Baoying Capital Water Co., Ltd.

KHAZEEMARA TR

Tianjin Capital New Materials
Co., Ltd.

PLBTTAIZEAB A RA R

Honghu Capital Water Co.,Ltd.

2006 4R ¢
Established during 2006:

BUM AR A7 R R
Hangzhou Tianchuang Water
Co., Ld.

Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

7  LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(@)  Investment in subsidiaries
All subsidiaries of the Company are companies with limited liabilities. The
Company’s subsidiaries are registered and established in China other than
Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd., which

is registered in Hong Kong,

AT BEMA
RENFEE A B =30 Company
Registered capital ~ Piffilidi @6 Principal activities Investment cost
ARWa#T Interest held ARBE#T
Rmb’ million (%) Rmb’ million
120 90 TIBTG K IEHLA B AOK A 108
Municipal sewage water processing and
water plant construction operation and
management
100 98 AUKAEEHE - PR 98
HKH T R

Production and sales of recycled water
and technical consulting for water
recycling business.
100 95 UG K EHERGR i B 95
BAABRTS KK I PR A o 0
Construction of municipal sewage water
plants and provision of related consulting
services for water processing facilities

FETI8HE 100 KB IEIE KR SLIE H Ik 5 63
USD7.8 Sewage water treatment and water
million recycling business
45 99.9 TG K pE AN B A K BB Rt BH 8 44

e EH
Municipal sewage water processing and water
plant construction operation and management
35 99.75  THELHKEEHAN A AOK R B 3 » 34
gE - HH
Municipal sewage water processing and water
plant construction operation and management.
38 70 TBUGKBEIAN B AOKRCE SO - 27
- g
Municipal sewage water processing and water
plant construction operation and management
38 71U RRLEREATRH R S 26
Production and sales of new types of
construction materials
20 90 LIS K IE AN A AOK AL Rt B 5 18
f - g
Municipal sewage water processing and water
plant construction operation and management

257 70 TS K AN P A K] it ) 4 A 180
0 s A 3

Municipal sewage water processing and recycled
water plant construction operation,
maintenance and training

693
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Associated Company

o
Group
R A
EFEEAR Bl
Percentage Hifi
BEHAER  of interest in Share of gain
Investment  registered BEZRNA  of associated At
period capital Cost company Total

% ARWTHL ARETL AR¥TL
Rmb'000  Rmb000  Rmb’000

KR B PR A B 2 ) Tianjin International Machinery

Co.,Ltd. (Note)

R O AT R ) i — Sk A K e T 4
PHIBREE A AT AR - R AR A
R 120 T80 - H 3L I o BRORME R
B R RIS - BROMEE M BT A &
TR - et 0 R 5 - R
B o MERRIRNE B AR B R R R
BE s -

BRI BB ¥

30 45 54,000 4,474 58,474

Tianjin International Machinery Co.,Ltd. (TIMC) is a sino-foreign joint venture registered in
the Tianjin Economics and Technology Development Area, with a registered capital of Rmb120
million. The main business of TIMC includes research and development, production and sales
of environment protection equipment; engineering technical consultation; trading;
manufacturing and sale of general equipment. Share of gain of associated company is the

investment gain for the year recognized based on the equity accounting method.

() Other long-term equity investments

A Al
Group Company
Mg e A [ Mg e A
kI EE AR el TP AR Pl
Percentage IR A Percentage JBEHE A
of interest in Cost of interest in Cost
registered capital ARWTIL  registered capital ARWT G
% Rmb’000 % Rmb’000
PR piL S Tianjin Baotong Qinjiliao
ABRAT (%) Co., Ld. (*) 20 2,000 20 2,000
KT AA WM A7y Tianjin Northern Human Resources
APRAF (%) Co., Ltd. (*) 6.1 2,000 6.1 2,000
KA TR R Tianjin Pipeline Engineering
AR A (%) Management Co., Ltd. (*) 20 2,000 — —
RO 2 Difference in long-term equity
investments 3,186 —
9,186 4,000

* The Company has no significant influence on these entities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

FIXED ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION/

AMORTISATION
G
Group
7593 S
BE O BERH Rig
S I HE Buildings ~ Machinery Motor
Land use B and and vehicles it
rights Road  structures  equipment  and others Total
AR¥TE  ARWTT AR®TT AR¥TT ARWTLT ARWTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Cost
At 31 December 2005 649,891 185,418 917,265 294,688 108,802 2,210,064
Additions 122,572 — 1,816,571 314,403 15,007 2,268,553
Include: transferred
from CIP 8,215 — 1,289,730 57,826 3,362 1,359,133
Disposals - — (404) 906) (4,830) (5,330)
At 31 December 2006 772,463 185,418 2,787,432 608,995 118,979 4,473,287
Accumulated
depreciation/
amortisation
At 31 December 2005 (86,003) (42,901)  (314,916)  (153,218) (47,837)  (644,875)
Additions (15,302) (3,453) (82,212) (23,988) (10,701) (135,656)
Disposals — — — 88 2,737 2,825
At 31 December 2006 (101,305) (46,354)  (397,128)  (177,118) (55,801) (777,706)
Provision for
impairment
provision
At 31 December 2005 — — — — — —
Current year changes — — — (3,760) — (3,760)
At 31 December 2006 — — — (3,760) — (3,760)
Net book value
At 31 December 2006 671,158 139,064 2,390,304 428,117 063,178 3,691,821
At 31 December 2005 563,888 142,517 656,349 141,470 60,965 1,565,189

impaired.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limite
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All of the Group’s land, road, buildings and structures and plants are located
in the PRC.

Of the Group’ net book value of fixed assets and construction in progress
as at 31 December 2006, about Rmb 187 million (2005: Rmb 138 million)
relates to the Company’s subsidiary, Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd., which
has been incurring continuous losses since commencement of its operations.
However, given the promising prospects of the water recycling industry as
encouraged by the PRC government, the Directors of the Company believe

there is no indication at the current stage that these assets may be permanently
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8 WEEERESIE A 8 FIXED ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION/
(%) AMORTISATION (Continued)

(¢) JA2006%F 12 A31H» EERE ©)
SEYIANTE EE TR W A R ME 4
WR VLA 25 N R S 2480 R12.3
&7t (2005 4F + AR¥s 0.5 A
721870) o

As at 31 December 2006, buildings and structures and construction in
progress comprised the net carrying value of the external pipeline network
amounting to approximately Rmb520 million and Rmb230 million
respectively (2005: Rmb50 million and Rmb720 million).

(d) BB ARy AR 918 )
80 (20054F : 1.781870) HISNE
B > HE R T R
SR o B 1 NI
PR AR B A A A T A H
RO KA R A AT
R UATEAERWE

Fixed assets include assets purchased from external parties with the cost of
Rmb918 million (2005: Rmb178 million). The property right transfer
procedure has not been completed or in progress. In view of the fact that
the assets purchased from external parties are based on the relevant legal
agreements, the Board of the Company believes that there will be no legal
obstacles for the transfer of the property rights and no significant additional

costs will be incurred.

A
b
Group
R R 20 iy .
BEY B REie
70 S H A i Buildings  Machinery Motor
Land use ¥ and and vehicles At
rights Road  structures  equipment  and others Total
AR#T ARETT AR¥TTH AR¥®TT ARWTT AR¥WTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
JAE Cost
2005 4F 12 J] 31 HERE At 31 December 2005 645,804 185,418 790,879 201,625 74,486 1,898,212
AAEHE N Additions — — 1,301,169 2,753 4,607 1,308,729
Hod s R TRREA Include: transferred
from CIP — — 1,279,279 610 2,397 1,282,286
ARAE D Disposals — — — (96) (3,335) (3,431)
2006 4F 12 A 31 H#% At 31 December 2006 645,804 185,418 2,092,248 204,282 75,758 3,203,510
PEE Vg ] Accumulated
depreciation/
amortisation
2005 4F 12 J 31 HERE At 31 December 2005 (85,693) (42,901)  (307,481)  (141,266)  (39,830) (617,171)
AAERE N Additions (14,677) (3,453) (68,524) (9,119) (6,382)  (102,155)
AW Disposals — — — 89 2,333 2,422
2006 4 12 7 31 HER% At 31 December
2006 (100,370) (46,354) (376,005) (150,296) (43,879) (716,904)
B Net book value
2006 412 H 31 H % At 31 December
2006 545,434 139,064 1,716,243 53,986 31,879 2,486,606
2005 4F 12 J] 31 HERE At 31 December
2005 560,111 142,517 483,398 60,359 34,656 1,281,041
TR A S BRI A A PR 2 ]

SEBAFEH
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(R B st AR )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

9 FERTH 9  CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
i 2005 4 T 2006 4 TRBAM
12H31H AN BT
BSY Asat A4 Asat HRKRHE Incurred costs
TRBHAR Budget 31 December AAERM  Transferred 31 December  Source of to budget
Water Recycling Project costs 2005 Additions out 2006 funds costs ratio
AR#ETFE AR¥TFC  ARBTL  ARWFo  AR¥FC %
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb000 Rmb000 Rmb’000
EIREY Ji Zhuang Zi 674,112 22,608 (507,249) 189,471 A& R RATER *
JER () (Expansion) Bank loans and
(Bt 3E 1(a) (Note 1(a)) self-raised fund
AISKEMK  Bei Cang 131,824 22,671 (112,290) 42205 BAENEITER *
(BEE 1(a)) (Note 1(a)) Bank loans and
self-raised fund
JERG#E KR Xian Yang Lu 597,110 57,043 (587,866) 66,287 B8 RARAT R *
(WHE 1(2) (Note 1(a)) Bank loans and
self-raised fund
SAEFEKER i Zhuang Zi 58,421 — (58,421) — HE *
(W) (Reconstruction) Self-raised fund
fff o Research and 7,206 — (7,206) — Sk *
Development Self-raised fund
Center
BTRHERIH Staff Dormitory 5977 — (5,977) —  HE *
Self-raised fund
HE Others 629 7,204 (3,277) 4556 A
Self-raised fund
171
ArAEE Total (Company) 1,475,279 109,526 (1,282,286) 302,519 HE :
Self-raised fund
HEGKEMIK  Baoying 47,982 27,456 (75,438) -  B%
Self-raised fund
JRB B K Xian Yang Lu 140,000 4,584 69,35 (707) 73112 HE - WITEHRR 53
Ifl i A2 Wiater Recycling A
Project Specific bank loans and
self-raised fund
IR 7K HE Chibi 97,000 26,585 10,998 — 37,583 HE 40
Self-raised fund
HE Others 244 2,662 (702) 224 HE
Self-raised fund
& At Total (Group) 1,554,674 219877 (1,359,133) 415,418
o - AR Including: Capitalised
Bl aH borrowing costs
AL ~ Company 73,485 10,929 (68,300) 16,114
— — Group 76,953 12,874 (71,768) 18,059
* 2 20064F 127 31 HIE#ZIEE B HEAE T » * As at 31 December 2006, the project was substantially completed. The cost incurred was within
HRAS RIS AR A o the scope of the budget.
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10 T4 B 2

B 30 E IR £ Fuyang 30-year
L beneficiary right
Fopth Others

WA AT 2 FA ) BRI AIFEK S A R
) (TR KH ) BT s & A fr
JA 2005 412 H 18 HESETH ek - B0
TR TS B 5 717 95 /K S 3 30 4F-H 9 i
7E T M A MR > 3 S A N R
LO2ETCIEHE - #%20064F 12131 H
1k > FIERFRIEGHA A R H1,020 8 e
2007 4FJE A (BfEsE 20)  (2005: FEAT4)
AR 041570 (BEEL1D) o

CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

10 LONG-TERM PREPAID EXPENSES

b
Group
J# 2005 4 Jit 2006 4
12H31H R2A3H BEREER
JEMEE B 31 December  AAERIMAL  ASAEBEBIB 31 December  Unamortized
Initial cost 2005 Addition  Amortisation 2006  period (years)
ARMTE  AR¥WTE  ARWTT AR®TT  ARWTC
Rmb’000 Rmb000 Rmb000 Rmb000 Rmb000
102,004 — 102,004 (3,683) 98,321 29
42,592 14,766 991 (6,576) 9,181
14,766 102,955 (10,259) 107,502

Pursuant to the agreement reached between the Company’s subsidiary Fuyang
Capital Water Co., Ltd. (“Fuyang Capital”) and Fuyang Construction Committee
on 18 December 2005, Rmb102 million was paid to Fuyang Construction
Committee for a 30-year right to operate Fuyang sewage water plant. As at 31
December 2006, about Rmb 10.2 million remains to be settled by year end 2007
(Note 20) (2005: Rmb 40 million was settled as prepayment (Note 11)).

11 RIWEA* 11  LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS
b A

Group Company
#2006 4 J#4 2005 4F #2006 4F J# 2005 4F
12431H 12H31H 12/31H 12131 H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
ARWT I ARWEF 7T ARWTI NG ST
o - Rmb’000 Rmb000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

BRI (FE 10) Prepayment for
beneficiary right (Note 10) — 40,802 — —
— 40,802 — —
TR A S BRI A A PR 2 ]

SEBAFEH
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

12 % WAk

H I R A SR T

e TR AT

BT
B[ #73235)

IR AR S AR A
HERIRTT

GRINIEE AR AT

R ERAUT
A
T AR SRR AT
AR AT
GLliGH

12 SHORT-TERM LOANS

Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

#2006 4
12H31H
As at
31 December
2006
ARWTIE
Rmb’000
China Minsheng Bank 200,000
Industrial and Commercial 190,000
Bank of China
Industrial Bank 100,000
Beijing Bank 100,000
Shanghai Pudong 50,000
Development Bank
Hua Xia Bank 36,000
Shen Zhen —
Development Bank
CITIC Industrial Bank —
Total - Company 676,000
Shanghai Pudong 15,000
Development Bank (*)
China Construction Bank —
Total - Group

LA PHE RIS 5.5%

6.1% -

691,000

to 6.1%.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limite
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Ji% 2005 4
12H31H
Asat

31 December
2005
NEMET 0
Rmb’000

300,000

100,000

100,000
90,000

590,000

5,000

595,000

BRA

Guarantor

KT B A PR T
Tianjin Municipal
Investment Company

Limited (“TMICL”)

KB F N B SR
BT

Tianjin Expressway
Investment &

Construction

Development

Company

T B AT PR /A )

TMICL

B 173
H R FOK A BRI AR A )

FRACRNE 1,700 #7T

B 2y B

secured by a deposit receipt of
Rmb17 million provided by
Tianjin Water Recycling

Co., Ltd.

The average annual interest rate for the above short-term loans ranges from 5.5%
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13

14

15

JE A W 3k

AR A R A AT AR A D 5%
(B 5%) DA 3 Rk I 0y 1) 1 SRR 3K
T

e e MR Ak

AR B AR R R A AN R 5%
(£5%) Lh b FURBER A Y B 1 5K
TH o

JE AT e A

AN LR 2006 4F 6 H 30 H A4 B BRROR
Erimmek > DA 2005 4F 12 A 31 H
1k 2 BEIBA 133 (R A HE B > 5 10 JBIR
BHSAFAR 0.4 0 (58 T
Ho LEEARM0.53 500 (2005 4F « 4
10 BIREE &AL R AW 1 o0 (&8 T
JER > 3Lt AR 1.33480) « 4EKME
ASF PRI B 8 2 0 S A 4 B0 A0 B A
IN: ¥4 K

13

14

15

CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

As at 31 December 2006, there were no accounts payable to any shareholders who

hold 5% or more of the Company’s voting shares.

ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December 2006, there were no advances from any shareholders which

hold 5% or more of the Company’s voting shares.

DIVIDEND PAYABLE

Pursuant to the shareholders meeting held on 30 June 2006, the Directors proposed
to distribute a final dividend of Rmb0.4 (tax included) for every ten shares held by
shareholders based on the total number of shares of 1,330 million as at 31 December
2005, totalling Rmb53 million (2005: Rmb 1(tax included) for every ten shares
held by shareholders, totalling Rmb133 million). The balance as at 31 December
2006 represents the dividend for prior years not yet paid to the legal person

shareholders in China.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH
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b Bt AR )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

16 MWERBLE 16 TAXES PAYABLE
i A
Group Company
#2006 4= Ji% 2005 4 #2006 4 J# 2005 4
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
AR®TI ARHET AR¥T NS
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
JREAZ BT A58 Income tax 67,376 71,445 63,971 69,787
HExC 2B T Business tax and others 4,076 4,962 3,357 5,666
71,452 76,407 67,328 75,453
17 HEHAX 17 OTHER PAYABLES
gl A
Group Company
#2006 4 Ji% 2005 4 #2006 4 14 2005 4F
12H31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
ARWETIE ANRHET I ARMET L NG S T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
175
JRE A5 i A Construction costs payable 64,696 70,547 47,261 70,547 2
JREASF B I v e OR Payable for purchase of fixed assets 30,371 50,512 — 36,589
He Others 26,074 7,984 42,122 4,758
121,141 129,043 89,383 111,894
AT AR IR AL F5% As at 31 December 2006, there were no other payables to shareholders who hold
5% ) LA b 3R R A 1 I B K 5% or more of the Company’s voting shares.

T o

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limite

Annual Report 2006




M EE  Notes to the Financial Statements

CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

18 R 18 LONG-TERM LOANS
R R The loans mature as follows:
ahF Al
Group Company
J# 20064 Ji% 2005 47 J# 2006 4% J#4 2005 4
12H31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
ARWT ANR#ETI AR¥ETIL NG TR
Rmb’000 Rmb000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
—AERAAI S AF Payable within one year 99,250 62,500 74,000 60,000
BB AR AT Payable in the second year 416,250 136,500 334,000 134,000
AR SRR AT Payable in the third year 466,750 448,500 337,000 391,000
to fifth year
TAELME AT Payable after the fifth year 736,500 57,500 400,000 50,000
1,718,750 705,000 1,145,000 635,000
Forpfa g Loans from:
PR PR (G a) State Development Bank
(note (a)) 545,000 585,000 545,000 585,000
HEERERTT GGERE(D)) China Everbright Bank
(note (b)) 450,000 100,000 400,000 50,000
RE TRRTT (GERE(C) Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (note (c)) 250,000 — — —
PEERERTT (FERE(d)) China Construction Bank
(note (d)) 233,750 20,000 — —
PREEBRIT GEREG) CITIC Industrial Bank (note () 200,000 — 200,000 —
PEIERTT (FERE(D) Bank of China (note (f)) 40,000 — — —
1,718,750 705,000 1,145,000 635,000
AR Notes :
(a) S D T R R LR RS O S LU A (a) This borrowing is secured by TMEB guarantee together with certain of its fee collection rights,
SRS DI A U HERE Sy BT o 2SR T AR and bears interest according to the rates for long-term loans as promulgated by the People’s
SR T A R SRAT A AT 0 1R 00 18 R R 77 Bank of China. The prevailing interest rate ranges from 6.1% to 6.4% (2005: 5.8% to 6.1%)
B BIREAERI2256.1%516.4% (20054F © 5.8% per annum.
# 6.1%) -
(b) SR PR A AR S KR B W B R (b) This borrowing is secured by the TSC's right to receive sewage water processing fees together
DA S AN R IR AR AR A R A O 5 4F with TMICL guarantee and bears interest rate ranging from 5.02% to 6.84% (2005: 5% to
F2 15 5.02%516.84%(2005 4 : 5%%15.8%) ° 5.8%) per annum.
(c) SUAB B AN T TS AN K BIK B A BRA ) () This borrowing is granted to the Company’s subsidiary Hangzhou Tianchuang Water Co., Ltd.

A mAA ARSI o HORIR
RGP RS AT R I FOR 307 8 > B4R
FIRE 6.1% 1 6.4% (20054F : 4E) o

and s secured by the Company’s guarantee and bears interest according to the rates for long-
term loans as promulgated by the People’s Bank of China. The prevailing interest rate ranges

from 6.1% to 6.4% (2005: nil) per annum.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

18

19

EWE (90
(d) o AR 190 F o SR LAE R A H 2
1 1 K A HERTS /K B B A AR B ]
5 AR 4375 B E TR AN
RARBIE R o (EFOHFRIE PR A RSB T =
B HR RIS BIRFAERIR LY 6.1% ¥ 6.4%
(2005 4 : 6.1%) °

(e) B R TR o (53R 26 1 v B R ERAT
RWESHR = BURFERRL 6.1% 5 6.4%
(2005 4 : &) -

() A EAA T LR B IER o f5HOR R
B BRI TR ORI R 7 Bh > BIRRAEAIR
F56.1% 5 6.4% (2005 4F : 4E) o

M A 45 2

Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

18 LONG-TERM LOANS (Continued)

(d) The borrowing of Rmb190 million is secured by the right to receive the tap water supply fees
and sewage water processing fees, the other borrowing of about Rmb 43.75 million is secured
by the Company’s guarantee. These borrowings bear interest according to the rates for long-
term loans as promulgated by the People’s Bank of China. The prevailing interest rate is ranging

from 6.1% to 6.4% (2005: 6.1%) per annum..

(e) The borrowing is credit loan and bears interest according to the rates for long-term loans as
promulgated by the People’s Bank of China. The prevailing interest rate ranges from 6.1% to

6.4% (2005: nil) per annum.

(f) The borrowing is guaranteed by the Company and bears interest in accordance with the rates
for long-term loans as promulgated by the People’s Bank of China. The prevailing interest rate

ranges from 6.1% to 6.4% (2005: nil) per annum.

19 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Y Il L
2005 4F TR 4 2006 4
12731 H Portion of 12/131H
AT 31 December  redemption and 31 December
Issuance 2005 conversion 2006
Bl (6R) No. of bonds (unit) 12,000,000 3,720,970 (350) 3,720,620
BHEH (T Value of bonds (Rmb *000) 1,200,000 372,097 (35) 372,062

AAEREN > A S 4 R R 35,000
TCRY AT B R R S AN E] A TR
JB 5wt 7,609 ik o #% 2006 4 12 H 31 H
1k > AR T TN B 12480 vl 4
NTMES AT 4 H TR
R RS T A A R A BB - i
B2 Al 25 N W 6.08 TR ~ 4.87 7T
BRI 3.90 TCAERE

During the year, Convertible Bonds with an aggregate face value of about Rmb 35,000
were converted into a total of 7,609 A shares of the Company. Till the end of 31 December
2006, of the Convertible Bonds of Rmb 1.2 billion issued by the Company, Convertible
Bonds with an aggregate value of about Rmb4 million were converted into the Company’s

A shares at Rmb 6.08 per share, Rmb 4.87 per share and Rmb 3.90 per share respectively.
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19 MEM %

AN ER 2004 7 A 1 H A BEET 1,200
HR A RS BeRiEE A RK
1007€ » it 8617 TR Rl R R HA
R 12500 - BB ERHARE
3,500 8 Cf% - BATREAF TG 2 HaH
PARW1165M T - &R il
Lo BTG o

o BEHEK

() SATHER N RS b
RORAT R AT ([HEOR
N1 SRAEREEER - T
AR R IR BRI A R
PRAULRIELR o BN B 34T
ZH (2004 7H1H) 12
MHENE —MZ5 B
(200547 H1H) & (&5
ERIEIETIE . & YAl et
BH (200946 30 H) i
M—MHsc s Bk (F#H)
B PNGIR R g i
LY S /NCEIIE . el
) e B AE AR o B Pl N R M
7.7 7C o TEEBAN > A%
A AR A AR
) i 7 (S 1 I MR
T SR S 3 A B
JB > [l B A AT A
AR > 7R/ A AT S 1
2B SRS AR AL
Gl ipS L]
RS A B 5 AR A,
bh - BRI S B R
Rl NTE S R N E
PR T A S AL 5 ARk e R
B2 2% o

19

CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 1 July 2004, the Company issued 12 million “A share” convertible bonds
certificates at face value of Rmb100 each (“Bonds”), which was listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange. The aggregate amount of the Bonds issued was Rmb1,200 million.
The net cash received from issuance of bonds is about Rmb1,165 million after

deducting the issuance expenses of about Rmb35 million.

. Principal terms of bonds:

()  The Bonds, guaranteed by the Construction Bank of China, Tianjin
Branch (“the guarantor”) and counter-guaranteed by TMICL, the
Company’s controlling shareholder, to the guarantor, are convertible
into shares of the Company at any time on and after 1 July 2005,
the first trading day after 12 months from the issue date (1 July
2004), and prior to 30 June 2009. Holders can apply for conversion
during the conversion period. The initial conversion price of the
bonds is set as Rmb7.7 per share and the Board of the Company is
entitled to revise the conversion price during the conversion period
based on the market price of the Company’s shares. Unless previously
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled, the bonds will be
redeemed within 5 days after maturity date on 30 June 2009 at 100%
of the principal amount and accrued interest in the fifth year plus an
interest compensation for the difference between the five times of
bond interest of the fifth year and actual total interest paid in the 5

years.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

19 MBS (w0 19 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
o EHEMHK (4 .

Principal terms of bonds: (Continued)

AR FVEEA T B 2 0 S T A
RIS 1.7% % 2.7% - EH
A TESREA ARRLE A
E ST PR A LR T AR YR
T TR SRR A 5
IRFKF-T DA% o ARGEREAR
NRFHRE TEAFLEL A
R 1,049 T (2005 4F
B AR 1,900 870) o

A AT AT ) R R
17 H— -5 2 5 A U
A SRR I E S A RER ©
AL FIA IR SEAEAT A
430 fH=c 5 H 1T 20 1A
385 B RO B AR AR 5
IR EAS 10 130% > A
R REHCTH (E Y 102% 6 55
NPT TR B AR A B Y
% [ 2 AR 5 AR 1)
AR S o

QLS NGile 2 PN 25
7E AT SR\ ) 2 R0 A
WS IRET) o WAL
A A JRIGETEAT T4 30
{5 5 H AT 20 858 5
H O R AT 6 M i
EE A 70% 1 » ERFFA A
AR I mT i ]
&SRR o [ B4 A
Al o

These Bonds bear interest ranging from 1.7% to 2.7%. The actual
interest payable to the bond holders will be based on the carrying
bond interest rate and adjusted according to the five-year fixed deposit
rate published by the State. As at 31 December 2006, the Company
accrued the related bonds interest of about Rmb10.49 million (2005:
Rmb19 million).

The Company has the option to redeem the bonds one year after its
issuance through its maturity in whole or in part at 102% of par
value plus current year’s interest, provided that during conversion
period, the closing prices of the A shares for any 20 days in 30

consecutive trading days are more than 130% of the conversion price.

The Bonds holder has the option to resell the bond to the Company
in the conversion period in whole or in part, provided that during
the conversion period, the closing prices of the A shares for any 20
days in 30 consecutive trading days are less than 70% of the conversion

price.
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19 KSR 90

FEHGK (4

(i) ARG EHYEAH
T E A TR ek B
2006 4F 12 A 31 H 1k > HHf
B RIE AR 7.7 02
AT IE AR 390 -

Jo] 43

2005 4F-8 H 19 1 B A S R AT A
ARy A 4 T #) AR 8.24 1
TORY AT > (Rl )T T H)
N B 1,650 B Thy B S E 4 -

CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

19 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
. Principal terms of bonds: (Continued)

(i)  Pursuant to the provision relating to the downward adjustment to

the conversion price in the prospectus, the conversion price has been

revised downward from the initial Rmb7.7 to Rmb3.9 as at 31

December 2006.

. Redemption:

About Rmb824 million of Bonds were redeemed during August 2005. The

premium for the redemption is approximately Rmb16.5 million.

R ARG A B2 7]
SEBAFEH
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

20 AP 2B RN 4% 20 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
i A
Group Company
i 2006 4F J# 2005 4F % 2006 4F i 2005 4
12H31H 12H31H 124310 12A431H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
ARWT 50 NGl T ARWET I NGB T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
HHEE Special fund 108,264 91,828 16,364 —
Foeb s K BUR SUHE 5 Including: Specific fund granted
(7)) by Tianjin Municipal
Engineering Bureau
(note (a)) 81,215 81,215 — —
R HE T B HA AR M HH Special fund granted by other
G4 (GGERE®b) authorities of the Tianjin
Municipal Government
(note (b)) 10,685 10,613 — —
— A N B AR Loans of national debts due
HEES GEE() within one year (note (c)) 16,364 — 16,364 —
ERELERER® Anhui Fuyang Construction
(Fft&E(10) Committee (Note 10) 10,200 — — —
118,464 91,828 16,364 —
S Notes:
(a) AR F TR FIR AR ER S B B Y (a) Special fund granted by TMEB to the Company’s subsidiary Tianjin Recycled Water Co., Ltd.
HIAE S > R AT 15K I TREAERL for the construction of Tianjin Ji Zhuang Zi Sewage Water Recycling Project.
(b) PERA BN AR A EIE G 4 > T8 (b) Special fund obtained from other authorities of the Tianjin Municipal Government mainly for
TR ACHE TG K ) TR g the construction of Tianjin Ji Zhuang Zi Sewage Water Recycling Project.
DUk (a) ~ (b irl 2 HIERERT 3 A U 2 B AL S AAE The specific payables stated in (a), (b) above are interest free, and the date and method of repayment will
FERAGEE » M AT RIE 58 % A i i only be determined after the completion of the construction project.
H A o
bR A ARG E W AR R T o B AR B R The repayment scheme for the long-term liabilities mentioned above is still under negotiation. As the
AR A EMNFHE A RE) A - terms are uncertain, these payables have been reclassified to current liabilities.
(c) FER T BUR AR A B v — 2R I E () The portion due within one year of loans of national debts from TMEB amounted to
WEAH AR 16 TET (WRE21) - approximately Rmb16 million (Note 21).
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CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

B A % 21 LONG-TERM PAYABLES
i A
Group Company
T 20064 J#4 2005 4 #2006 4 J#4 2005 4
12/31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
ARWT I ANRET T ARWT ARET T
Rmb’000 Rmb000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
KB EIHES (K@) Special fund granted by
Tianjin Municipal Engineering
Bureau (note (a)) 180,000 180,000 180,000 180,000
EFIA GRS AR —F N Current portion due
W EE (B3 20()) within one year (16,364) — (16,364) —
163,636 180,000 163,636 180,000
(a) T 2005 A FEALS W) H K T BUR 1 A (a) The Rmb180 million loan from TMEB taken during 2005 is specifically for construction of

A NEHE 1.8 (0T » RS /K B R
o AT 2007 ST 11 SEEFR - 4F
RIS 6 4F 5 5% - A LERAIR A E
LERLE H P B RE TAM —LE AR AR
ZImo3% o

Sewage Water processing plants. The loan is repayable in equal instalments over eleven years
from 2007. The loan bears interest at 5% per annual for the first six years. From the seventh
year to maturity, the interest will be based on the one-year deposit plus 0.3% premium published

by the People’s Bank of China on the effective date.

—EREIRE R AR 160 B or D s
—FEREMRIMAR (k20 - to long-term liabilities due within one year (Note 20).

The portion due within one year amounting to approximately Rmb16 million has been transferred

R ARG A B2 7]
SEBAFEH
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22 JBAR
ARG EFERMT (A7 T
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22 SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in share capital are set out below (unit: *000):

Iy 3
Share classification
2005 4F AAER I 2006 4F
124311 Wik (19) AREEWD 12H31H
Asat 31 Increase in Reduce in Asat 31
December this year this year December
2005 (Note 19) 2006
kil Non-circulating shares 877,505 — (877,505) —
R 4 S 2 Restricted circulating shares — 835,638 — 835,638
i A K Circulating A shares 113,153 41,878 — 155,028
Circulating H shares 340,000 — — 340,000
i H %
1,330,658 877,513 (877,505) 1,330,666

A SARA A AIAE L8R5 5 P L TiTHY
JBEEE o H s AL A i I 5 20 5 B
ARAF ETTABER o B A B H B
TE45 7 T AT R S A o

AN A BEREHA 2006 4 3 H 20 HAibifE T4
8RR SRR R HE T BB A PR A m 4t i A8
BRI IR 7 BT R o IRIRRZRE S Bl
HEHE > RHETTEARCE A R "l m A A w8
A 20064 3 H 8 H sk A IR A4 10
FBE3. 7B - Hht41,867,391 o MEHES> il
AR > AR R BROAR o R T B A PR A )
PR IR HE 63.05% TR 55 59.91% o [R]HF
Wr 7 S A TBEIBEOR 41,867,391 RO LA 5 J4 9E
BRIV A A > FLAR T A T Ui AR g oy PR
HIVER AL o SHE B A BRI 2R B L
A R B T By > RITE R s A P v B e
JRAR AP N B 2 1] B TR R 10% -
Al 57 S 7 208 P P SR 7 AR M R 8 S R — 4R AR
B H R IR A R

A Shares refer to the shares of the Company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
H Shares refer to the shares of the Company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. All the A and H shares rank pari passu in all respects.

On 20 March 2006, the revised Stock Reform Plan proposed by the Company’s
controlling shareholder, TMICL, was approved by the Company’s shareholders of
A share. According to the stock reform plan, TMICL will pay to the Company’s
shareholders of A share as registered as at 8 March 2006, 3.7 shares for each 10
shares held and total payment is 41,867,391 shares. After the stock reform, equity
interest in the Company held by TMICL reduced from 63.05% to 59.91%. After
the Company’s stock reform, all of the non-circulating shares were converted into
restricted circulating shares except for the 41,867,391 shares paid to the Company’s
A share holders which became non-restricted circulating shares. Shares held by
TMICL are restricted, to the extent that within 3 years after the stock reform,
TMICL can only sell a maximum of 10% of its total shares. Other original
shareholders of non-circulating shares are free to sell shares in the Company they

hold one year following the completion of the stock reform.
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23 WA AR B B A B

2005 4F 12 J1 31 H2% At 31 December 2005

EARNREAAES % Contributed surplus

REGKE R ARE4  Transfer to statutory
common reserve

ARAE R Adjustment for the years

2006 4F 12 7 31 H2% At 31 December 2006

i

(a)

(b)

EAARUEARBREU BT B A A B >
J 4 DA i 4 B e AR sk AR

FERRAEE IOEE A S
HPEAA AR > R ot B RS
FIME 10% FHRE R AT S (HEHEA

e REREEMEAN 50% &1L 1525
JRAEVREE . 2 AR HE -

FE R ARCE TG © FRkER - A
N T R O S B o ANEA A R BT
B SRR € 08 2 e M i L R N P T
Ao B R RIS T R AR B BT
TAFEM E AR 25% -

M4 2005 4F 10 A 27 BT
2006 4 1 H 1 B4 TH A B E
AN F B R EE G R
AN AHE 2006 FREAFFHEA 6
G o [N > A2 R 20054F 12
31 HIEW A i s 87458 AR
66,008 T70 - WIERBARES
R o

CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

23  CAPITAL RESERVE FUND AND GENERAL RESERVES

A F |
Group Company
e bk
iy e BN iy
B AR Afis Aad Statutory Afis
Capital Statutory Statutory Capital Statutory A&
reserve common provident reserve common provident
fund reserve fund fund reserve fund
(R a) (FEFED) (G Rb) (FFfEa) (GEREb) (G Rb)
AR¥TT AR¥®TT  AR¥ETT AR®TE AR¥ETT AR¥TC
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (b)) (note (a)) (note (b)) (note (b))
Rmb 000 Rmb’00 Rmb 000 Rmb000 Rmb 000 Rmb000
75,182 133,813 00,908 75,182 133,813 66,908
27 — — 27 —_ —
— 19,935 — — 17,013 —
— 66,908 (66,908) — 66,908 (66,908)
75,209 220,356 — 75,209 217,734 —
Notes:
(a) Capital reserve fund comprises share premium arising from the issuance of shares, and it can be
utilised to offset prior years’ losses or for issuance of bonus shares.
(b) The statutory common reserve and the statutory provident fund.
According to the Company’s Articles of Association, it is required to transfer 10% of the net
profit of the Company as shown in the accounts prepared under PRC accounting regulations to
the statutory common reserve (until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital). The
transfers to these reserves must be made before the distribution of dividends to shareholders.
The statutory common reserve shall only be used to make up losses; to expand the Company’s
production operation; or to increase the capital of the Company. Upon approval by a resolution
of shareholders’ general meeting, the Company may convert its statutory common reserve into
share capital. When converting the Company’s statutory common reserve into capital, the amount
of such reserve remaining unconverted must not be less than 25% of the registered capital.
Pursuant to the relevant provisions amended on 27 October 2005 and
implemented on 1 January 2006 and the Articles of Association and the
resolution of the Board, no transfer to the provident fund will be made
commencing from 2006. Meanwhile, the credit balance of the provident
fund as at 31 December 2005 was Rmb66,908,000 which was transferred
to the common reserve for management and use.
R A 3L BUAR IR A R 2

SEBAFEH
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

24 RABAIM 24 UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS
2006 4 2006 47
Year ended 31 December 2006
i A
Group Company
ARMETIT ARWETIT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
AEAI AR BT Original amount of undistributed profit at the
beginning of the year 678,610 678,568
s A PR Add: Profit for the year 170,091 170,133
W AT A SRR — RO it e Ry Less: Cash dividend distribution by general
FARRE LA A shareholder meeting (53,227) (53,227)
REGEERGBAMS Transfer to common reserve (19,635) (17,013)
SEARTRBCAH Undistributed profit at the end of the year 775,839 778,461

25 EBEBRARYEBEFR 25 INCOME FROM PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION
(a) TBBEEHBRA (@)  Income from principal operations
bt A
Group Company

2006 4F B 2005 4 2006 4R 2005 4F ¥
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
ARWT I ARWET G ARWT I PN
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
(‘5‘ KB ‘ Sewage water processing services 684,446 278,710 591,663 253,000

157K MR R A Sewage water processing plants
construction services —_ 253,001 — 253,001
684,446 531,711 591,663 506,001
BRI Tolls income 65,890 65,290 65,890 65,290
B A K KA Tap water supply income 31,128 — — —

oK A B Recycled water and

pipeline connection 23,763 13,057 — —
B E S RN A Sales of construction Materials 2,154 1,777 — —
807,381 611,835 657,553 571,291
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CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

25 EBEBEBRARSEHBER 25 INCOME FROM PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS AND SEGMENT

(#) INFORMATION (Continued)
(b)  AEHEF (b)  Segment information
k&
kg HAk if 52
Sewage  MBRBIE  BUKEH  EMSEH Recycled water
water Road Tap water ~ Construction  and pipeline JHb R i
processing  toll stations supply materials  connection Others Group
20064

Year ended 31 December 2006
AR#FE  AREFT  AR®Fr  AR¥EFT  ARWFE  AR®TFr  AR®T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

FEERIA Income from principal
operations 684,446 65,890 31,128 2,154 23,763 — 807,381
FEEHRA Costs for principal
operations (273,840) (15,596) (24,541) (1,983) (14,478) — (330,438)
FEERBS R Business tax and
WA (B3 26) surcharges (Note 26) (32,737) (3,624) (205) — (717) — (37,283)
FEEHHH Profit from principal
operations 377,869 46,670 6,382 171 8,568 — 439,660
B AR Less: Selling Expense — — — (186) — — (186)
EHER Administrative expenses  (64,405) (4,460) (3,840) (8,713) (4,766) (3,080) (89,264)
BB T Financial expense (99,386) — (5,300) 5 (3,043) 194 (108,030)
HERA/ G Other gains/ (loss) 9,919 — 46 (4,122) (145) 5,147 10,845
T/ (B Total
e profit/ (oss) 23,497 42,210 Q712)  (12,849) 614 2060 253,005
W Bl Less: Income taxes (71,017) (13,950) — — — (222) (85,189)
B/ s Net profit/(loss)
— DR before minority
B PIRT interests 152,480 28,260 (2,712) (12,845) 614 2,039 167,836
Y et Minority interests (1,948) — 473 3,742 (12) — 2,255
FHE/ (1) Net profit/(loss) 150,532 28,260 (2,239) (9,103) 602 2,039 170,091

R ARG A B2 7]
SEBAFEH
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(R B st AR )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

25 EBEHBWRARSEHBER 25 INCOME FROM PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS AND SEGMENT

(#) INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) EBER (5 (b)  Segment information (Continued)
ok k
Tk BB
Sewage  HBICE I B Recycled water
water Road  Construction  and pipeline Holtu 3R b
processing  toll stations materials  connection Others Group
2005 4P

Year ended 31 December 2005
ARBFL  AR¥EFE  AREFT  AR®FL  AR¥FL AR
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

TEFHRA Income from principal
operations 531,711 65,290 1,777 13,057 — 611,835
FEEHA Costs for principal
operations (153,843) (15,070) (1,860) (15,721) — (186,494)
FEERBS KL Business tax and
W (5T 26) surcharges (Note 26) (27,172) (3,591) 2) (575) — (31,340)
EX- e vl | Profit from principal
operations 350,696 46,629 (85) (3,239) — 394,001
W BEER Less: Selling Expense — — (675) — — (675)
BB Administrative expenses (44,779) (2,985) (4,424) (3,439) — (55,627)
g il Financial expense (75,424) — (644) (3,233) — (79,301)
HERA Other gains — — — — 8,268 8,268
i,/ (e Total
Eit profit/(loss) 230,493 43,644 (5,828) (9.911) 8,268 266,666
B R Less: Income taxes (75,517) (14,403) — — (2,728) (92,648)
B/ (ER) Net profit/(loss)
— DEIRR before minority
EEn ) interests 154,976 29,241 (5,828) (9,911) 5,540 174,018
DHE RS Minority interests (170) — 1,709 300 — 1,839
A/ UER) Net profit/(loss) 154,806 29,241 (4,119) (9,611) 5,540 175,857
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26 EEFEHHE KR

27

28

HEDE
e
ek Lyl

B R - S

BATRE
] R AR S
W EAEALE

FE S AR
W AR A
(SR BEAT T S o 5 i

R
He

Bl (HE)

AR AL A
BEARFE (R

CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

26 BUSINESS TAX AND SURCHARGE

bk A
Group Company
2006 4FJE 2005 4FJ¥ 2006 4FJE 2005 4
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
ARWT I ANRET T ARWT ARET T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Business tax (33,773) (28,458) (32,878) (28,564)
City Construction tax (2,450) (2,017) (2,301) (2,000)
Education surcharge (1,060) (865) (986) (857)
(37,283) (31,340) (36,165) (31,421)
27 FINANCIAL EXPENSES - NET
bk A
Group Company
2006 4R 2005 4F ¥ 2006 4B 2005 41
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
ARWT I NS T ARWT NS T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Interest expense of bank borrowings
and convertible bonds (122,410) (79,502) (105,362) (75,314)
Less: Interest capitalised 12,870 35,254 10,926 33,254
Interest expense — net (109,540) (44,248) (94,436) (40,060)
Less : Interest income 5,403 8,843 2,000 8,013
Amortization of bonds issuance
cost and redemption premium (2,251) (40,033) (2,251) (40,033)
Security fees (1,150) (3,250) (1,150) (3,250)
Others (492) (613) (446) (605)
(108,030) (79,301) (96,283) (75,935)
28 INVESTMENT INCOME/ (LOSS)
bk A
Group Company
2006 4% 2005 4F ¥ 2006 4 2005 41
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
AR¥T N ST ARWT 6 NE¥TI
Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Share of profit/(loss) of subsidiary
based on equity accounting 4,474 — 2,047 (9,634)

R ARG A B2 7]
SEBAFEH
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(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

29

B 168 7 B 1%

(a)  AFFESE BB R 1 B 6 7

LU VR
Name of related party

KBS EARA A
TMICL

PR @R
TMEB

aUEE
Place of
registration

TR
Tianjin, the
PRC

THER
Tianjin, the
PRC

Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

29 RELATED PARTIES

(@)  Related parties that have controlling relationship

TR
Principal
businesses:

BB R A ) BH 38
T M A
Development,
construction and
management of
municipal
infrastructures

EE R
AR RN A
Supervisory
management of

the infrastructure and
road construction in
Tianjin

A AR BA LRI T AR FERKEE 7() -

Note: These companies are subsidiaries of the Company and their principal businesses are detailed in note 7(a).

A A K85 A7 PR T
Qu Jing Capital
BT A R
Guizhou Capital
KHAKA R A
Wiater Recycling
KM ATIRA 7
New Materials
BRI A R A
Fu Yang Capital
AR B AR AT
Bao Ying Capital
TREERISERE AT PR A ]
Chi Bi Capital

HEB T RISE KB A R A R

Hong Hu Capital

KERIZERRI () ARAR

Hong Kong Capital

BN R AKHS A R

Hang Zhou Capital

LA 24 F B R
Relationship
with the Company:

PERRR
Controlling
shareholder of
the Company

E BN
Supervisory
controller of
the Group’s
businesses

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limite
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B PR
Type of
enterprise:

AR H]

Limited
company

FHEH
Government
authority

AR

Limited

AR

Limited company

AR

Limited company

AR

Limited company

AR

Limited company

AR

Limited company

AR

Limited company

AR

Limited company

AR

Limited company

AR

Limited company

HRRFN
Legal

representative

ISES
Ma Bai Yu

BRIgED
Sun Zeng Yin

RSO
Zhang Wen Hui

i Rl
Gu Qi Feng

RSO
Zhang Wen Hui

Luo Lian Fang

RSO
Zhang Wen Hui

PRI
Lin Wen Bo

RSO
Zhang Wen Hui

RSO
Zhang Wen Hui

i Rl
Gu Qi Feng

i Rl
Gu Qi Feng
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CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

29 BWBTHE (w0 29  RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(b)  AETEE 0 B A o R OB 7 vk (b)  Paid up capital of related parties that has controlling relationship and their
V8% 14 movements
7 2005 4¢ J# 2006 4F
1231 H 1231 H
As at As at
31 December ARSER I 31 December
2005 Additions 2006
ANRWETIC ARWTIC ARWTIT
Rmb000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000
KT B AR TMICL 1,820,000 — 1,820,000
i B 2 K TS A5 PR 7 Qu Jing Capital 120,000 — 120,000
B A2 KA BRA R Gui Zhou Capital 100,000 — 100,000
Fept kAR B AT A R Wiater Recycling 100,000 — 100,000
KA A A R TCNM 45,500 (8,000) 37,500
B A2 K AT R A Fu Yang Capital 45,000 — 45,000
A KA R T 7 Bao Ying Capital 38,000 - 38,000
FRBERN K B AT R 7] Chi Bi Capital 35,000 — 35,000
T A2 K B R A Hong Hu Capital 20,000 — 20,000
HoM K BB AT BRA 7 Hang Zhou Capital — 257,445 257,445
FILTic FILTie FILTe
USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
KRAAERR (Fi) HRAH Hong Kong Capital 7,840 — 7,840
(c) TRIEPERIBIAZ i B 05 D3 AR 2 (c)  Share or equity of the Company held by a related party that has controlling
i By B RE 2% e JL S8 AL relationship and its movements
7# 2005 4F 12 A 31 H AW 7 2006 4 12 4 31 H
As at 31 December 2005 Reduction As at 31 December 2006
Rmb’000 % Rmb000 % Rmb000 %
ARHTT B ARWTT B ARWTT Al
S A A 7 TMICL 839,020 63.05% (41,867) 3.14% 797,153 59.91%
(d)  AnAEAE P I 1 9 - 2B (d)  Major related parties that have no controlling relationship
SRS B BR
Relationship with the Group
KBEHHEA A 7] (7] 52 T By B R A 2 4 )
Tianjin Sewage Company State-owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB
PRENIE NI AN DI Ri T (7] 52 17 B A A 0 A 3 i )
Tianjin Sewage Management Bureau State-owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB
No.8 Management Office
KHE K TR (7] 52 17 B A A 0 7 A 3 )
Tianjin Sewage Engineering Company State-owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB
KHTE B R TR IF] 52 T Iy B I 4 S 8 )
Tianjin Road & Bridge Management Bureau State-owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB
JCHET T B AR RO e B 7] 52 T By B R A 2 0 )
Tianjin Municipal Engineering Design Research Institute State-owned company under the supervisory control of TMEB
Bl (RHE) TR RAR AR RIS B 8 )
Scott Willson (Tianjin) Consultancy Company Associated Company of Tianjin Municipal Investment Co., Ltd
TRl SR 1 A 7

SEBAFEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements & 51 E 51

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

30 BBRY

AN > BRAEEHRE H E 31
BB 07 2 o (7 BAh - A A I S T B
A AT A E RS S normal course of operations of the Group.

JitEH
T

B84 75 ity 45

Related parties

A

Income:

Kk a
TSC

BRI 7 94 7

Related parties

KETTEEL A PR T
TMICL

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

RO

Nature of transaction

VKRR A (BT 1(a))
Revenue from sewage water processing services (note 1(a))
ARE KRR TR (BT 1(b))

Revenue from construction of sewage water processing plants (note 1(b))

LG PEE
Nature of transactions

FRA TR R ROF
Holding of convertible bonds

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limite
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Except for those as mentioned elsewhere, the following is a summary of significant

transactions with related companies during the year, which were carried out in the

B 200648 A 2005 4F
12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2006 2005
ARBTE  ARETL
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
591,663 253,000

— 253,001

#2006 4% i 2005 4F
12H31H 12H31H
As at As at

31 December 31 December
2006 2005

Tik Tk

Unit in 000 Unit in 000
— 209

191
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31

32

CRRE B s AL A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

YA R i 31 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
[B¥: $0PR1 &% 1%/ ¥ ¥ 3]
Contracted but not provided for Authorised but not contracted for
% 2006 47 A 2005 4 HRE 2006 42 A 2005 4
12H431 HIE 12131 Hik 12H 31 HIE 12131 H ik
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
A RW e NG IS ARWE# AR E &
Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million
15K MR Wiater processing plants in:
- U - Ji Zhuang Zi 4 5 — —
- L - Xian Yang Lu 2 56 — —
e - Bei Cang 2 18 — —
- JREE - Chi Bi 59 — — —
- Bl - Fu Yang — 61 — —
- thsk - Qu Jing — 290 — —
- B - Hang Zhou 341 — — 180
- B - Hong Hu 16 — — —
HUKROEH - Wiater recycling plants:
- Ja g 5 K el AR - Xian Yang Lu water
recycling plant 67 — — —
- JUJR ok - Bei Chen water
recycling plant 2 — 107 —
KERIZERE (Kl ARAR TCEP(HK) — 62 — —
a0 Total - Group 493 492 107 180
O 4 32 DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

2006 FJE - AL B AN FESE AT
M4 (ELEEH4 ~ 55 2 HEAG L e )
ANERH 1,805 ToC (2005 4F « AR
1,833 TC) > Hrp e i s JF g
FHAT 2 ME AR 624 ToT (2005
4 NR¥624T0) o

The Company and its subsidiaries have paid an aggregate remuneration (including
salaries, housing allowance and other allowance) of Rmb1,805,000 to the
Companys directors (2005: Rmb1,833,000). The total amount includes director
fees of Rmb624,000 (2005: Rmb624,000) paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH
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(R B st BRI A )

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Regulations)

33 WimdEm 33. Events after balance sheet date
(a) WUEE 2007 FH—FEMH - B (@ Asof the first quarter of 2007, Convertible Bonds issued by the Company
AHA SR AR 217,534,000 7T with a face value of Rmb217,534,000 were converted into 55,309,987 A
AN RVEEATHY AT BN F R Shares of the Company.
JRA A FARRBES > 555,309,987
% o
(b) WIFERERRE > ANFRTE (b)  Pursuant to the resolution of the Board, the Company has proposed to
BEATHRAR 1,330,666,019 A% 23 distribute a cash dividend of Rmb0.4 (tax included) for every ten shares
oo RO 10 RIREE B held by shareholders, totalling Rmb53,226,641, for the year 2006, based
A4/ (L) 1E £ 2006 on the total issued share capital of 1,330,666,019 shares.
SRR i A R53,226,641
IE o
34 frukER N B 34 AUTHORISATION FOR THE ISSUE OF THE ACCOUNTS
AGEHIRIR 2007 4E 4 18 HACdI AL The accounts were authorized for issue by the Directors on 18 April 2007.

AR -
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BB E R Independent Auditor’s Report

BORH SR BR DR By 47 B2 W B
(R e A RSB R T 2 W BRA )

AR (DUT RS T3 )) B F s Hk 56
196 % 267 H KA SRR B AR AR (T4
Al RHEFAR (MG THEE] MEEs
WIBRE » ARG B IRER SR —FERE
TAZ T HWERS A Al i AR IR
A IFFENGEA IR - FOERgE R
MEABERER > DR FEGFIBORME &
A B 5 R o

200 S 5 R AURYE i AR
AR EFAA TR R G T el &
s AR Y ) S B (AR 94
B HRAE i S LR AT M8 5 i i B
W o B AT BT ~ 0l Sl B
FURT M 5] e 0 5 AR B £ 7R 2
DL B 5 B e A 7 ph R TR B b i 22
HOR B AR PR 5 A8 AR R 00 B RO
BARAEDL T AE 1 B Rl R o

B W il 1 T4

T ) FL SRR BB A A 5 S
A T R R R, L BRUL 2 AP A
LA E A o A S BA R A
AR T A 5 _E ORI AT RALE -

TeM AR o &t il 2 B LA (1) 7 v o
RIEAT AL o TE e HE I BOR M P i 1B A
o B R > LG B I RS
HRFSEA A A A TR St B -

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TIANJIN CAPITAL
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMPANY LIMITED

(A joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with

limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianjin Capital Environmental
Protection Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 196 to 267 , which comprise the consolidated and Company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2006, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then

ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in

the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

AT M 47 A
SEEEM
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2006 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 April 2007
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Ji 2006 412 H 31 B (BR JEAR RIS W AT 4 B 072 oy ARV o0)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2006 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Land use rights
Investment in an associate
Deferred income tax assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Trade receivables due after one year
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables and prepayments
Loan receivable
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
the Company’s equity holders
Share capital
Reserves
- Proposed final dividend
- Others

Minority interests

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current income tax liabilities
Borrowings

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Ma Baiyu

Director

R ARG A B2 7]
SEBAFEH

i3
Note

13
14
15

16

17
18

19
20

21

19

2.1(a)

Gu Qifeng

Director

B+-H=1—H
As at 31 December
2006 2005
3,288,848 2,430,690
113,925 93,411
704,466 595,762
61,660 —
2,288 —
6,000 6,000
749,973 466,185
142,146 94,975
5,069,306 3,687,023
7,839 11,828
43,210 67,820
28,360 9,888
— 16,000
733,744 753,294
813,153 858,830
5,882,459 4,545,853
1,330,666 1,330,658
1,056,192 950,703
53,227 53,226
1,002,965 897,477
2,386,858 2,281,361
116,111 49,132
2,502,969 2,330,493
2,157,980 1,185,123
2,362 5,691
2,160,342 1,190,814
253,258 203,773
67,376 71,445
898,514 749,328
1,219,148 1,024,546
3,379,490 2,215,360
5,882,459 4,545,853
(405,995) (165,716)
4,663,311 3,521,307




B LR — An  Balance Sheet-Company

J* 20064 12 A 31 H (BRIEF5 G 47 G308 0038 2y AR T 50)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2006 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

) mt+=H=+—H
{5 As at 31 December
Note 2006 2005
W ASSETS
e g Non-current assets
L/E R Y& Property, plant and equipment 6 2,112,773 2,070,924
Ea g/ES Investment properties 7 97,611 93,411
T Land use rights 8 578,741 591,985
(YN &< Investments in subsidiaries 12 692,751 450,380
AL T A5 B Deferred income tax assets 20 2,288 —
A A A Available-for-sale financial assets 10 4,000 4,000
— ARSI 5 BB Trade receivables due after one year 14 749,973 466,185
HAIE B G Other non-current assets 11 40,067 47,000
4,278,204 3,723,885
R Current assets
Ay Inventories 13 2,699 2,614
G 5 e Trade receivables 14 16,473 61,867
oAt RO S B RO Other receivables and prepayments 15 84,119 4,600
JRENC B Loan receivable — 16,000
B4 RARTT RS Cash and bank balances 16 607,136 497,462
710,427 582,543
90 Total assets 4,988,631 4,306,428
Hizs EQUITY
7R 2 vl BERR T AT AMEAS BEAR B fi Capital and reserves attributable to
the Company’s equity holders
A Share capital 17 1,330,666 1,330,658 197
fFk e Reserves 18 1,067,489 964,002 -
—HEIRA M B - Proposed final dividend 53,227 53,226
—HAb - Others 1,014,262 910,776
HH% Total equity 2,398,155 2,294,660
£kt LIABILITIES
Fim ) £ 4 Non-current liabilities
=T Borrowings 19 1,609,480 1,117,623
BB A & Deferred income tax liabilities 20 2,362 5,691
1,611,842 1,123,314
WE AN Current liabilities
B 5 B RERT 3R Trade and other payables 21 148,299 168,667
BT E A Current income tax liabilities 63,971 69,787
B Borrowings 19 766,364 650,000
978,634 888,454
LR Total liabilities 2,590,476 2,011,768
HOBESE R AL Total equity and liabilities 4,988,631 4,306,428
L EER(eRE Y Net current liabilities (268,207) (305,911)
B BRI ) A Total assets less current liabilities 4,009,997 3,417,974
LSRR B R e Ma Baiyu Gu Qifeng
HH E#H Director Director
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HAHEIEE Consolidated Income Statement

A 2006 4F 12 31 HIREREE (BRIEFFIITEIA B S8 fndh s AR T o)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

BE 120 31 HIL4EE

Bt 3k Year ended 31 December
Note 2006 2005
el Sales 5 770,098 580,495
SHE A Cost of sales 22 (330,438) (186,494)
Ecvil] Gross profit 439,660 394,001
Heiss — Other gains, net 5(a) 15,797 17,111
EEINE A N Selling and marketing costs 22 (186) (675)
e A Administrative costs 22 (93,778) (56,240)
RERIW Operating profit 361,493 354,197
& A Finance costs 24 (129,961) (94,216)
JEAG T 2 Wl B Share of profits of an associate 9 4,474 —
B 7 2B 5 2 A Profit before income tax 236,006 259,981
RETN Income tax expense 25 (79,572) (84,345)
AEJE A Profit for the year 156,434 175,636
JREAL - Attributable to:
AT RER R A Equity holders of the Company 158,689 177,475
DB R A Minority interests (2,255) (1,839)
156,434 175,636
SE AR A A RERR R A A Earnings per share for profit
R A 28000 V4 5 DB 28 attributable to
the equity holders of
the Company during the year 27
AR AR
—HA - basic Rmb0.12 Rmbo0.13
AR AR
— i - diluted Rmb0.12 Rmb0.13
JBE A Dividend 28 53,227 53,226
TR A S BRI A A PR 2 ]

SEBAFEH



AR EIRE  Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

%2006 4F 12 H 31 HIRAERE (B 5 RIS W A < B 1 2 2 NI T-0)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

AR TR A A AR
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
A YRR SR
Wik JBeA it Minority HEL:
Note Share capital Reserves Interests Total

2005 4F 1 1 1 H#fR Balance at 1 January 2005 1,330,000 974,461 16,581 2,321,042
B ] T E > IBRBITE Redemption of convertible

bonds, net of tax — (74,126) — (74,126)
A ] A i Conversion of convertible bonds 19(d) 658 3,343 — 4,001
AR LA Profit for the year — 177,475 (1,839) 175,636
2004 SRS Dividend relating to 2004 28 — (133,000) — (133,000)
— SRR R 1 A Contributed surplus of a subsidiary 18 — 2,550 — 2,550
DRUBCRA MR A R E  Minority shareholders’ investment

in subsidiaries — — 34,390 34,390
2005 4F 12 1 31 HAGER Balance at 31 December 2005 1,330,658 950,703 49,132 2,330,493
AR R F Profit for the year — 158,689 (2,255) 156,434
2005 FEE S Dividend relating to 2005 28 — (53,227) — (53,227)
] Conversion of convertible bonds 19(d) 8 27 — 35
DEIRAUAME A AIHCE Minority shareholders” investment

in subsidiaries — — 69,234 69,234
2006 47 12 JJ 31 H &t Balance at 31 December 2006 1,330,666 1,056,192 116,111 2,502,969

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

A 2006 4F 12 31 HIREREE (BRIEFFIITEIA B S8 fndh s AR T o)
For the year ended 31 December 2006 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

i
Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 29
PRC income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment properties
Purchase of land use rights
Payment of other non-current assets
Proceeds from sale of property,

plant and equipment 29
Acquisition of investment other
than subsidiary
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivable
Interest received
Decrease in deposit with a non-bank
financial institution

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Capital injections by minority shareholder

Guarantee expense for the issuance
of convertible bonds

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Investment reduction by minority
shareholder

Increase in restricted bank deposits

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net decrease in cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balances at beginning
of the year

Cash and bank balances at
end of the year

R ARG A B2 7]
SEBAFEH

BE 12 H 31 HILAEE

Year ended 31 December
2006 2005
281,317 206,569
(89,258) (109,389)
192,059 97,180
(999,093) (161,988)
(10,754) (119,411)
(122,572) —
(50,998) (40,802)
1,534 373
(54,000) —
16,000 (16,000)
5,403 8,563
— 400,000
(1,214,480) 70,735
77,233 7,998
(1,150) (800)
2,044,770 870,000
(935,020) (983,902)
(121,378) (69,742)
(53,584) (133,174)
(8,000) —
(5,818) (32,850)
997,053 (342,470)
(25,368) (174,555)
744,112 918,667
718,744 744,112




Notes to the Consolidaetd Financial Statements 552 B %5 it 7 Bk

(BR IS RIE A Ay A 7 3 s AR T 00)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1 A fliy K L EEH 1 Company profile and principal activities
RERZER R A RA R (TALF )
SRR 1993 4F 6 H 8 H 7 ARG
(T B ) G B A PR A ] o

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited (the “Company”)
was established on 8 June 1993 in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) as a

joint stock limited company.

AT BCHE A R (AL ) Bl
RSBmO - AAOKHK
FRAE KK B A 2 B A 5
o

The activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) include sewage
water processing, tap water supply, production of recycled water and construction

materials and operation of toll roads.

DA A B R E R AR R The operation mode of the Group’s principal activities is described below:
(a) GAREBLED (a)  Sewage water processing
R R B e ([ ik g B 2R RE
) 1) o ASEEEE DL 5K

« . »
Pursuant to relevant agreements (“Sewage water Processing Agreements”),

the Group provides sewage water processing services via the following plants:

R Bt T K B AR -

o i

Plant Location

AR ERT 7 (0 UGS 7 ik -
Prior years’ agreements still in operation:
PRI
Dong Jiao, Tianjin
Kt #ET

Ji Zhuang Zi, Tianjin
KHE s e

Xian Yang Lu, Tianjin
PRE =)

Bei Cang, Tianjin
Lk T

Bao Ying, Jiangsu
LR R

Fu Yang, Anhui

4 i1

Qu Jing, Yunnan

AL kb

Hong Hu, Hubei

T4 2006 4FFT 5 IR Ik -
New agreement in 2006:
WL B

Hang Zhou, Zhejiang

P4 H

Commencement date

20004101 10 H
10 October 2000
2000 £ 10 H 10 H
10 October 2000
2000 410 H 10 H
10 October 2000
20004101 10 H
10 October 2000
2005 %6 J1 13 H
13 June 2005

2005 12 H 18 H
18 December 2005
2005 F 1225 H
25 December 2005
2005 412 H29 H
29 December 2005

2006 FF 11112 H
12 November 2006

%R

Customer

KR AF (kA F)
Tianjin Sewage Company(“TSC”)
Pk a ]

TSC

Pk

TSC

Pkl

TSC

HEGERR

Baoying Construction Bureau
REEMERER

Anhui Fuyang Construction Committee
i A PR KA R

Qujing City Water General Company
LT N

Honghu Construction Bureau

BUM T HEACH R
Hangzhou Sewage Company

Pk A B BA 3 M5 R T
BR ((RETERIRR]) B -

TSC is a state owned enterprise under supervisory control of Tianjin Municipal

Engineering Bureau (“TMEB”).

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited

Annual Report 2006




LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 &ﬁ%ﬁ&i%%ﬁ(%)

(a)

HAREBLEH (
M%AHT%WIEﬁﬁAﬁWT
Jridt

WA
A A 5 P 0 A A
A+ U A AT S
R AR S R SR Bk
i

() %m?ﬁmﬁ@%%%¥*
W Lkt CERR R
%%H%ﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁ
BE15% M IR > DL 5

(i) JEEEE AR K B
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁi%%ﬁ
Ji BB I ) 4 Y 0

BT ~ BB RIS

AR 2006 4F 3 A 10 HEHEK A
AU F ek - AR AR ACHE
¥ P AR KRR &
% T H 2R TEC A R A > 1
BN WE 1,93 58,/ 3 5 K LS
TKBEIRER o ML= 57K B HE R
B TR AR » A R mHEK A
T R BRSO 75K A 5 ) 1 J
RIS 5 K pE s

W2 57K e R B TR R B
2006 “FE 5L MM 2007
A SE U TR BRI A 3R >
B e B 2007 K

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1 Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

(@

Sewage water processing (Continued)

The background of principal terms of the pricing formula as set out in the

relevant contracts are briefly summarised below:

Dong Jiao

The Group will have full recovery of actual operating costs, including
depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets, excluding interest expenses

and foreign exchange gains or losses and at minimum:

(i) earn a return of 15% per annum of the average balances of the
monthly net book value of property, plant and equipment (as defined

in the agreement) of the plants; and

(i)  incentive pricing adjustments will be made for cost saving and/or
when actual processing volume exceeds the minimum processing

volume stipulated in the agreement.

Ji Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang:

Based on the supplementary agreement reached with TSC on 10 March
2006, the Company is entitled to sewage processing fee at Rmb1.93 per
cubic meter from the completion date of construction to the completion
date of inspection of Ji Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang plants.
Processing fee after the completion of inspection of these three plants will

be collected from TSC using the same principle as for Dong Jiao plant.

The construction of these plants was substantially completed during the
first quarter of 2006 and inspection which was expected to be finalised in

early 2007 has been delayed but is expected to be no later than end 2007.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH



(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1 Awlflis RBEEE (8)

(a)

(b)

HAREBLER ()

K HEPAAM B A 3G K R ¢

WEE KB AT AR 0.60
TEARW 1128/ VK> K
it Ol i g ST
B RGBSR - BOMRE - fE
VR T )58 ) > DLBURFBOR )
HEREL -

BRELFRSL > %% F B PR R
LLAMIS I A 5 7K R A Jo M5 7K
JEHE o IR PR R R A R
KR A ROK BRI

e S0 > AR AEAR I (A
BEAREE » AR 2R E R
A EARESE A - IrEE - T
Pl 35 7K i HE YY) 896 TRV 8
EEIE

15 7K M PG A 5 SR

A 2006 4F - R ZSFHE C R
2005 4FJEHT 76 AL > BT A
IEfrEa s - [ 2003 45 Fi4E
FEWA T k5 SR IT ©

HRAEAA T 2001 459 [ 24 H B
oK ARIERT 2 ik ([ EEsi
akl) > A E I HEK A AR A
AR~ AT AL =
7K et SR ) IR
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LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Sewage water processing (Continued)

All sewage processing plants outside Tianjin:

Initial sewage water processing price ranges from Rmb 0.60 to Rmb1.12
per cubic meter, thereafter processing price may be revised after considering
various factors including renovation of equipment, additional investment,
power and energy and labour force, and other significant changes of

government policy.

All sewage processing plants outside Tianjin are guaranteed a minimum
processing volume by their respective customers except for Gui Yang. If the
actual volume is lower than the guaranteed volume, processing fee will be

settled using the guaranteed volume.

In the case of Gui Yang, the price after two years will be determined by a
pricing formula which will effectively allow full recovery of the actual costs,
including operating cost, depreciation, income tax and a return of 8% on

budgeted net assets of the plant.

Construction of sewage water processing plants

In 2006, there was no construction fee earned as the projects were completed
by end 2005. The background to the agreements for the prior year’s income

since 2003 is detailed below.

Pursuant to an agreement (“Construction Agreement”) between the
Company and TSC dated 24 September 2001, the Company is to provide
construction services to TSC in respect of three plants of Xian Yang Lu, Ji

Zhuang Zi and Bei Cang,

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited
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LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1 Anflis R EEEEE (40 1 Company profile and principal activities (Continued)
(b) FARBIRE SRS (5 (b)  Construction of sewage water processing plants (Continued)
g B ) A A The principal terms of the Construction Agreement are summarised below:

LN

AR RITE AR 7K B B R A
ETRERMM - PKAF
[ A ) S A R
R BB A A FURIEE RS
7K BRRCTE 2 TR 2

Pk o ml i HAREA A 7
BZABSEREREH
il SE R 43 He I AR R
KRB

AR S AR L T
o TR C e TR 2

P MR AR E T
AN RN TS K A E

'
ETENFEEZEE U
K

TE R = A5 7K S 2R B
RIS AN R BPEK A
) 2 e B S5 4% RS K
BRI E k< B A HLE
RKEGK R REAT (B s
I(a)) o

a fee will be paid by TSC during the period of construction as a
reward to remunerate the Company for accepting the responsibility

to construct the sewage water processing plants;

a fee is payable by TSC in advance on a monthly basis according to
the percentage of completion of the respective construction projects

estimated by the Company;

The percentage of completion of each project will be adjusted on a
quarterly basis according to the certifications issued by qualified

independent surveyors or engineers;

the Company is responsible for the funding of the construction cost

of these plants, and

upon commencement of operations of the three sewage water
processing plants in Tianjin the rights and obligations between the
Company and TSC will follow the terms as specified in the Sewage
Wiater Processing Agreement as applicable to the Tianjin plants (Note

1(a)).

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH



(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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(b)

TR R (4

ol ik

BEAh > HHEACA R R 2001459 H 24
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AR E S 2002410 H 30 H
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LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

(b)  Construction of sewage water processing plants (Continued)

Transfer Agreement:

In addition, on 24 September 2001, respective agreements (“Transfer
Agreements”) were signed whereby, the Company would acquire the above
three plants from TSC and would be responsible for the construction and
management of the remaining uncompleted portion of the plants. The

transfers were deemed completed on 30 October 2002.

Co-operative Agreement:
On 25 August 2003, the Company entered into an agreement with TSC

(“Co-operative Agreement”) whereby:

. the Company would be responsible for the overall execution of the

construction of the three plants;

. TSC would be responsible for making use of the original loans from
two foreign banks (the “Foreign Loans”) to fund certain property,

plant and equipment used in these plants;

. TSC will sell to the Company these Foreign Loans funded property,
plant and equipment after their installation and the issuance of
verification reports, at their carrying value. The construction fee
charged by the Company pursuant to the above mentioned
Construction Agreement, would include the cost of these property,

plant and equipment as the base (Note 14); and

. the Company would be responsible for the repairs and maintenance
of these property, plant and equipment during the construction

period.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited
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LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Ay REEEE (4

(c)

3 R S R
H 2003 4ERAZCE 3 ke Y ek
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WO RER > Sif n] 1) R RZ I
Byl IF KT ROIRE (R
DR G B BRAD) WO BE 2 > HIRR
F202942 H28 HIE -

J4 2003 FFFEA o BEE KB RE A
BEAI Mo > RN R
FEAA R TR A OB S TE R T
A A il MBI K T AN
A MSE T » i KB L
PRy ([REETEUR 1) e KT
H AT B RO A E (T Rk
D) o HEEARETIIER
BRI T o AL
A A 2R 2003 4E 5 H 31 H
REHRRE » PRt KAl R Tl AR
NEE AR - FEAREUT
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(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1 Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

(0

Road toll stations
There are no changes of terms in following agreements since 2003, the

background is detailed as below:

Prior to 2003, the Company owned the right, to set up toll stations at the
junctions between the Tianjin city roads and expressways leading to the
city, and to collect tolls generally from non-Tianjin registered motor vehicles
(other than those exempted by law) passing these toll stations. The right

was for a term expiring on 28 February 2029.

During 2003, following the reform of the public transportation network,
the Tianjin Municipal Government relocated certain toll stations, including
those of the Company, to the boundary of the interstate highways
surrounding Tianjin. The collection of tolls from non-Tianjin registered
vehicles was then centralised at a Tianjin Toll Collection Office (“Toll
Collection Office”) set up by Tianjin Municipal Engineering Bureau
(“TMEB”). As a result, the Company’s toll stations were demolished since
31 May 2003 and TMEB agreed to compensate the Company principally

as follows:

. a one-off cash compensation by TMEB equivalent to the net book
value of the assets of the demolished toll stations as at 30 June 2003

of about Rmb33 million;

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

(©)

Road toll stations (Continued)

compensation for loss in revenue, during the period from 31 May
2003 to the date of completion of construction of the new toll
stations(mentioned in following paragraph), equivalent to the revenue
received in the same period of last year of about Rmb5.5 million net

of expenses; and

the Company was granted the collection right of six new toll stations
from 1 July 2003 to 28 February 2029. However, the Company is
not allowed to transfer, lease or pledge the right to other parties

without TMEB’s consent.

In tandem, the Company entered into an agreement (“Toll Collection

Agreement”) with Toll Collection Office on 24 July 2003 with following

principal terms:

the Company engaged the Toll Collection Office to collect the tolls
at the six new toll stations on its behalf for which it will pay a

management fee;

the Company is to receive the actual tolls collected from the six new
stations for the corresponding period/year, subject to minimum toll
fee for each period/year based on the forecast traffic flow and tolls
for the corresponding period/year as stipulated in a traffic flow and
tolls forecast report for the six new toll stations issued by a professional

consulting company in July 2003; and
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1 Company profile and principal activities (Continued)
() Road toll stations (Continued)
. any shortfall to the Company between actual and the agreed

minimum will be compensated to the Company by the Toll Collection

Office.

(d)  Tap water processing
Pursuant to agreement reached with Qujing City Water General Company
on 25 December 2005, a subsidiary of the Company, Qujing Capital Water
Co., Ltd., will provide tap water supply service to Qujing City via the Yunnan

Qujing tap water processing plant.

Tap water processing price is Rmb1.1 per cubic meter for the three years to
2008, and will increase in stage to Rmb1.25 per cubic meter by 2036. In

addition:

(i) Processing price as determined above may be revised after considering

various cost factors based on contract terms;

(i)  Qujing City Water General Company guarantees a minimum supply
volume. If the actual volume is lower than the guaranteed volume,

supply fee will be settled using the guaranteed volume.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied

to all the years presented, other than discussed in this section.
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LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical

cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’ accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a)  Going concern
As at 31 December 2006, the Group and the Company’s current
liabilities exceeded their current assets by approximately Rmb406

million and RMB268 million respectively.

Despite the foregoing, these financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, because the Directors of the Company
believe that the undrawn bank facilities are sufficient to support the

Group to meet their respective liabilities as and when they fall due.
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LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1
@)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Amendments and interpretations to published standards effective in 2006

(continued)

The following interpretations to existing standards have been

HKFRS 7
HKEFRS 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

published that are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st May 2006 or later periods that the Group

has not early adopted:

Financial instruments: Disclosures
Operating Segments

Applying the Restatement Approach under
HKAS 29, Financial Reporting
Hyperinflationary Economies

Scope of HKFRS 2

Reassessment of embedded derivatives

Interim Reporting and Impairment

HKFRS2- Group and Treasury
share Transactions

Service Concession Arrangements.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new standards, interpretations and amendment but is not yet
in a position to state whether they would have a significant impact

on its results of operations and financial position.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of

the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

()

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the

Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary

acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2

Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(t)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.

Transactions and minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority
interests as transactions with parties external to the Group. Disposals
to minority interests result in gains and losses for the Group that are
recorded in the consolidated income statement. Purchases from
minority interests result in goodwill, being the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying

value of net assets of the subsidiary.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

()

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified

on acquisition .

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH



(BRI A

BT AT AR 4 2 AR T T)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 jz%ﬁ%ﬂk%%% (4)
BAWRHE (4

2.2

2.3

24

(c)

W& 2 7 (%)
TERGE > FIRR S e S A
B R -

AN Z EEAREN,
JARGR A 7 2 BB A
BRI REA SR - B
BAFZERMAL D
B E A SR -

Vgt s

ST AR SR L i R
— AL NSRS , T i RS Y
JaL g R 2] S B LA S5 73 30 ) A
(R o 88 73 B0 A A S AR
B T R R AR E O, L
IR R T B 7 LA AR

BRI R A o

At E 58

(a)

TIREFIZHE E W

A S O g R Y B
P B X 34 DA B
TEf) E BAEHIR BT B
B ([erl)) - &aw
BrEU ARE (AR
) 2, ARWRAALH
BOH B 22 A 9 T fE M
B -

2

e

W LM HE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associated
companies are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses The
results of associated companies are accounted for by the Company

on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing

products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different

from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged

in providing products or services within a particular economic environment

that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments

operating in other economic environments.

Translation of foreign currencies

()

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“Rmb”), which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency and also that of its principal subsidiaries.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

24

2.5

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of the road and in relation to the tolls business is calculated to
write off their cost, less accumulated impairment losses, if any, on a units-
of-usage basis whereby the depreciation is provided based on the share of
projected traffic volume for a particular period over the projected total traffic
volume throughout the period of 30 years for which the right to operate the

toll station is granted.

Depreciation of leaschold buildings and structures is calculated to write-off
their cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, on a straight-line basis
over the unexpired periods of the leases, the unexpired periods of the rights
to operate the road toll stations or their expected useful lives, whichever is
shorter. The periods adopted for depreciation range from 10 to 50 years.
Pipelines network laid outside the plant are included in structures with

estimated useful lives of 25 years.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Other property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient to
write-off the cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, of the assets
and less estimated residual value, over their estimated useful lives on a straight-

line basis. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-20 years

Motor vehicles and others 5-15 years
The assets’ carrying value and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying value is greater than its estimated recoverable

amount.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction or installation and is stated at cost. Cost comprises all direct
costs of acquisition or construction of buildings and plant and machinery
as well as interest expenses on the related funds borrowed during the
construction, installation and testing periods prior to the commissioning
date. Construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment

upon completion.

Major costs incurred in restoring property, plant and equipment to their
normal working condition are charged to the income statement. The expenses
relating to improvements of property, plant and equipment are capitalised

and amortised over their expected useful lives to the Group.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of information
are considered to assess whether there is any indication that the property,
plant and equipment are impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.

Such impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

The gain or loss on disposal of property; plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the income statement. Any revaluation reserve
balance being attributable to the relevant asset is transferred to retained

earnings and is shown as a movement in reserves.

Repair and maintenance expenses are charged to the income statement as

incurred.

Land use rights
Land use rights are recorded at cost and presented net of accumulated

amortization and impairment provision.

Amortisation of land use rights, other than those in relation to tolls business,
is calculated to write-off their cost less accumulated impairment losses, if

any, on a straight line basis over the period of land use rights of 50 years.

Amortisation of land use rights in relation to the tolls business is calculated
to write off their cost, less accumulated impairment losses, if any, on a units-
of-usage basis whereby the amortisation is provided based on the share of
projected traffic volume for a particular period over the projected total traffic
volume throughout the period of 30 years for which the right to operate the

road is granted.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Investment property
Property that is held for long-term rental yields and that is not occupied by

any of the companies within the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Depreciation of investment property is calculated to write-off
that cost, less accumulated impairment losses, if any, on a straight-line basis

over estimated useful lives of 40 years.

Impairment of assets

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there

are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Investments

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

. Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-
current assets. Loans and receivables are grouped under as trade ad

other receivables in the balance sheet.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Investments (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to disposal of the investment within 12 months

of the balance sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on trade-
date- the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
assets. Investments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction
costs. Investments are derecognized when the rights to receive cash
flows from investments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale assets are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are

carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.10

2.11

2.12

Inventories

Inventories comprise raw materials, finished goods and other consumables.

Raw materials and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value whilst other consumables are stated at cost less provision for

obsolescence.

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
comprise raw materials, direct labour and an allocation of all production
overhead expenditures incurred based on normal operating capacity.
Provisions for declines in the values of inventories are determined on item-
by-item basis when the carrying value of the inventories is higher than their
net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of

anticipated sales proceeds less estimated distribution and selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. Provision is made against accounts receivable
to the extent that they are considered to be doubtful. Accounts receivable in

the balance sheet are stated net of such provision.

Cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balances include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.13

2.14

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers,
levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes
and duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings

using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Taxation rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date are used to determine deferred

taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can

be utilised.
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LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.14 Deferred income tax (Continued)

2.15

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on investments

in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary

difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities

and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligation

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organized by relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligation
of all existing and future retired employees payable under these plans.

Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.

Housing fund

The Group provides housing fund based on certain percentage of
the wages and with no more than the upper limit of the requirement.
The housing fund is paid to government social security organization
and corresponding costs are expensed or included in the cost of sales

for the current year.
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LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition

Revenue from sewage water processing and provision of tap water is

recognised when services are rendered.

Toll fee income is recognised on a actual collection from toll users and

compensation from the Toll Collection Office, if any.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the

goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into account

the principal amounts outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of

that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement in the year in

which they are incurred.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 BEEEEHBORME @) 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

218 HEALLE 2.18  Operating leases
A AT RREAE A S B A Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
[m1 i A A IR B - R 951 remain with the leasing company are accounted for as operating leases.
TEEER I o R B S Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement
FOEPHE MM B AR R on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.
SHH

2.19 BB 219 Dividend distribution
1) A2 R ISR A R 1 R R A P 1 Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a
AR v FBSRAMHE R S [T A 7 A 4 1 liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
i TS R Ay AL o dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

3. WBEEEHEE 3 Financial risk factors

A S 8 1 SE 5 1 8 v L 2 1 T TR The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects
DL SR ~ B U R R S — of credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rates risk.
I Hs R -
225
(@) BB R ()  Financial risk factors
(i)  PEFERE (i) Foreign exchange risk
ZS LR S e ibE S The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
LN e PN settled in Renminbi and does not have significant exposure to foreign
HE > BEHPRZ B MR exchange risk.
BEAK -

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited

Annual Report 2006
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
3 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a)  Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i1)  Credit risk
The Group is exposed to concentrated credit risk because most sales
are to a small number of government bodies. The carrying amount
trade receivables represented the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk. Majority of the Group’s trade receivables relate to provision of
services to a related party which is the government backed body. The
Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of the customers’ financial

condition.

(11i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets but borrowed
substantial amount of short-term and long-term loans from banks at

floating rates.

(b)  Fair value estimation
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets including cash and
bank, trade, other receivables, deposits and prepayments; and financial
liabilities including trade payables, short-term borrowings, other payables
and accruals, approximate their fair value due to their short maturities or
because they bear interest at prevailing market rates, except for convertible

bonds (Note 4(d)).
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LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ciritical accounting estimate and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting

accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next year are

discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Convertible bonds

The Company tests whether the convertible bonds will be redeemed within
one year. In accordance with the principal terms of bonds detailed in Note
19(d), in particular circumstances, the Company has the option to redeem
and the holder has the option to resell the bonds to the Company. However,
the Company has no intention to redeem the bonds and is prepared to
adjust the conversion price as necessary. Hence, management estimates that

the bonds are non-current in nature.

Projected traffic volume of toll road

The total projected traffic volume of toll road is reviewed regularly with
reference to both internal and external sources of information and adjusted
if appropriate. Independent professional traffic studies are performed
periodically and appropriate adjustment will be made should there be a
material change. The directors of the Company considered that these are

the best current estimates on the total projected traffic volume.
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LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

4 Ciritical accounting estimate and judgements (Continued)

(©)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group tests annually whether property, plant and equipment has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in financial
statements Note 2.5. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations

require the use of estimates.

Valuation of financial instruments

The value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. The Group has
used discounted cash flow analysis for various financial assets and liabilities

that were not traded in active markets.

The main assumptions used for estimating the fair value of convertible loans

are discount rate of 5.6% and maturity of 2.5 years (2005: 3.5 years).

If the above discount rate used in management’s computation had been
increased or decreased by 10%, the carrying amount of the convertible loans

would be approximately lower or higher by Rmb5 million.
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LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue and segment information

An analysis of sales, stated net of business tax, and contributions to operating

profit for the year by principal activities is as follows:

(a)

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and other revenue

Turnover (Note 5(b))

Other gains, net
- Rental income from investment property
- Interest income
- Subsidy income

- Others

Total revenue

Business segment analysis

Turnover

Sewage water processing services and
construction of sewage plants (Note 1(b))

Tolls (Note (1))

Tap water processing

Water recycling and pipeline connection

Construction materials

Segment result

Sewage water processing and
construction of sewage plants

Tolls

Tap water processing

Water recycling and pipeline connection

Construction materials

Unallocated

Finance costs

Share of profit of an associate (Note 9)

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Net profit after tax for the year

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited
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RE 12 A 31 HIk4R)E
Year ended 31 December

2006 2005
770,098 580,495
2,394 7,552
5,403 8,843
8,000 1,000
— (284)
15,797 17,111
785,895 597,606
BE 12 1 31 HIR4EE 229
Year ended 31 December
2006 2005
651,709 504,539
62,266 61,699
30,923 —
23,046 12,482
2,154 1,775
770,098 580,495
327,344 313,252
42,211 44,941
2,927 —
4,053 (6,397)
(12,830) (5,151)
(2,212) 7,552
361,493 354,197
(129,961) (94,216)
4,474 —
236,006 259,981
(79,572) (84,345)
156,434 175,636




230

LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 WARZBER (5
BB WA ()

(b)

AR

(M)

(ii)

AT R 56,200 H G £y 1 T 2
T RE Rl T AR I B AR AT R A
(HfrE 1) -

MR BB > AR AR
WEA 5% w5 SERL S 8 3B
10% HEIBUR B INEL - #2E 20065
121 31 HALAE Y78 3R S BUR A
B A N3, 700 8570 (2005 4F = AR
f3,100870) - eBCRFRALE
I8 5 SE R A AR A FR AR o

HETE R 42 R 5 R 2> 5 IE H 4

T

it
V57K HH 15 7K P R

T
A KB
PR IR R

HEERR

A

]
V5K B R 35 K i PR R R

LR
HESE R
AR

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

5 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(b)  Business segment analysis (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The tolls income of Rmb62 million represents the minimum toll fee guaranteed under
the Toll Fee Collection Subcontracting Agreement (Note 1(c)).

(ii) Pursuant to the PRC tax rules, the Group is subject to PRC business tax levied at 5%
of operating revenue and government surcharges levied at 10% of the amount of business
tax. The business tax and government surcharges related to revenues derived from the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2006 amounting to Rmb37 million (2005:
Rmb31 million) and has been deducted from the operating revenue to arrive at the
turnover of the Group.

Other segment items included in the income statements are as follows:

BE 12 431 Hak4EE
Year ended 31 December
2006 2005
Depreciation
Sewage processing and
construction of sewage plants 89,234 40,427

Tolls 3,453 3,453

Tap water processing 9,176 —

Water recycling and

pipeline connection 7,414 7,280
Construction materials 2,123 2,019
Unallocated 8,137 2,272

119,537 55,451

Amortisation

Sewage processing and

construction of sewage plants 14,634 10,584

Tolls 4,266 4,170

Construction materials 85 85

Unallocated 817 602

19,802 15,441
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LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(b)

Business segment analysis (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December and capital expenditure

for the year then ended are as follows:

Total assets

Sewage processing and
construction of sewage plants

Tolls

Tap water processing

Water recycling

Construction materials

Associate (Note 9)

Unallocated

Total liabilities

Sewage processing and
construction of sewage plants

Tolls

Tap water processing

Water recycling

Construction materials

Unallocated

Capital expenditure

Sewage processing and
construction of sewage plants

Tap water processing

Water recycling

Construction materials

Unallocated

No geographical segment analysis is presented since all of the Group’s

operations are in the PRC.
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2006 2005
4,714,602 3,723,959
323,397 398,482
242,630 —
296,891 238,694
33,845 46,583
61,660 —
209,434 138,135
5,882,459 4,545,853
2,978,668 2,016,300
17,020 7,948
152,790 —
212,752 155,170
12,922 9,815
5,338 26,127
3,379,490 2,215,360
821,028 298,602
236,149 —
57,065 4,794
1,191 12,375
13,864 121,009
1,129,297 436,780
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

6  Property, plant and equipment

(@  Group
W~ R
BB B Bt i RIe
/] Plant, Motor fERE TR
Buildings  machinery vehicles Construction
bk and and and  in progress At
Road  structures equipment others (“CIP”) Total
(FEFEGD)) (B (c))
(Note (1)) (Note (c))
Cost
At Ist January 2005 185,418 691,453 255,961 93,319 1,461,338 2,687,489
Additions — 23,710 3,240 2,732 251,098 280,780
Transferred from investment
properties (Note 7) — 27,668 — — — 27,668
Transferred from CIP — 102,124 41,229 14,409 (157,762) —
Disposals — (2,022) (5,742) (1,658) — (9,422)
At 31st December 2005 185,418 842,933 294,688 108,802 1,554,674 2,986,515
Additions — 499,771 256,579 11,645 211,662 979,657
Transferred from investment
properties (Note 7) — 1,907 — — — 1,907
Transferred from CIP
(Note 6(c)) — 1,289,730 57,826 3,362 (1,350,918) —
Disposals — (404) (96) (4,830) — (5,330)
At 31 December 2006 185,418 2,633,937 608,997 118,979 415,418 3,962,749
Accumulated depreciation
At Ist January 2005 39,448 291,389 144,165 35,987 — 510,989
Charge for the year 3,453 22,492 14,521 12,713 — 53,179
Disposals — (2,012) (5,468) (863) — (8,343)
At 31st December 2005 42,901 311,869 153,218 47,837 — 555,825
Charge for the year 3,453 78,999 23,988 10,701 — 117,141
Disposals — — (88) (2,737) — (2,825)
At 31 December 2006 46,354 390,868 177,118 55,801 — 670,141
Impairment
At 31st December 2005 — — — — — —
Charge for the year — — 3,760 — — 3,760
At 31 December 2006 — — 3,760 — — 3,760
Net book value
At 31 December 2006 139,064 2,243,069 428,119 63,178 415,418 3,288,848
At 31 December 2005 142,517 531,064 141,470 60,965 1,554,674 2,430,690
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%S Cost
200541 H 1 H At 1st January 2005
HR Additions
[i8=C/EL YN Transferred from investment
(Bi3E7) property (Note 7)
TE g TRz A Transferred from CIP
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RalorE
20051 H1H
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e

#2005 4512 H31 H
AR

e
#2006 4F 12 A 31 H
Vi i L

#2006 4E12 H 31 H

2005412 H31H

Transferred to a subsidiary
Disposals

At 31st December 2005

Additions

Transferred from investment
properties (Note 7)

Transferred from CIP

Disposals

At 31 December 2006
Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2005

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2005
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2006
Net book value

At 31 December 2006

At 31 December 2005

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Company
Wi~ R
GilE B B B ik i Ritg
i) Plant, Motor fEHt T2
Buildings  machinery vehicles Construction
bt and and and  in progress At
Road  structures equipment others (“CIP”) Total
(REFE(D)) (iEFE(c))
(Note (1)) (Note (c))
185,418 628,101 205,823 68,089 1,319,903 2,407,334
— — 1,544 696 178,133 180,373
— 27,668 — — — 27,668
— 8,799 — 7,367 (16,166) —
— — — — (6,591) (6,591)
— (2,022) (5,742) (1,666) — (9,430)
185,418 662,546 201,625 74,486 1,475279 2,599,354
— 11,337 2,143 2,210 109,526 125,216
— 1,907 — — — 1,907
— 1,279,279 610 2,397 (1,282,286) —
— - (96) (3,335) — (3,431)
185,418 1,955,069 204,282 75,758 302,519 2,723,046
39,448 289,527 137,376 34,863 — 501,214
3,453 16,918 9,358 5,830 — 35,559
— (2,012) (5,468) (863) — (8,343)
42,901 304,433 141,266 39,830 — 528,430
3,453 65,311 9,119 6,382 — 84,265
— — (89) (2,333) — (2,422)
46,354 369,744 150,296 43,879 — 610,273
139,064 1,585,325 53,986 31,879 302,519 2,112,773
142,517 358,113 60,359 34,656 1,475,279 2,070,924

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited
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LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 ¥ - W R (4

Al (8

(b)

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

W)

ASEEE P - R R
AL P - #5210 % SO4F i P TR AY £
4o

P % IR 108,000,000 7T (2005
AR KR HE46,000,000 70) 7E 8 85 A
Jocd, TR 9,000,000 7T (2005
4 AR 7,000,000 76) RIIGFALTEL
- §iiki)

A A S T S A TR
20064F 121 31 H BRI A4 A RS
187,000,000 7C (2005 4F : AR¥
138,000,00007C ) EELACZ ] 1 i 24
KAk REAEATHE » %47
F G B R A DA — B AR AR Nl
BRSO E TP 3
AT SHAR > AARIERME > £H
i S B e S B % 4 Y T
KA

A AR 918,000,000 7T (2005
A AR 178,000,000 78) 92T L
Mo ST A HE (RIS - RS K
Bt BEWE (KRE7) R A
E (HRES) ) A7 R s BLIE R A S ] o
PRV R4 Y £ L W
AR R SRS > N6 I3
A5 A BT A RE T 018 8 1) A% B B S AR
SMEERFH (i) o

T REREY AR TR (BEE
%) 12006 4F 12 A 31 H B ARTE
ST N R 519,000,000 78 KA R
231,000,000 JG (2005 4+ AR
47,000,000 7 K A 718,000,000

JT) o

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

6  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
(b)  Company (Continued)

Notes:

(i) All of the Group’s road, buildings and structures are located in the PRC and held on

medium term leases of 10 to 50 years.

(ii) Depreciation expense of Rmb108 million (2005:Rmb46 million) has been included in

cost of sales and Rmb9 million (2005: Rmb7 million) in administrative expenses.

(iii) Of the Group’s net book value of fixed assets and construction in progress as at 31
December 2006, about Rmb187 million (2005: Rmb138 million) relates to the
Company’s subsidiary, Tianjin Water Recycling Co. Ltd., which has been incurring
continuous losses since commencement of its operations. Given the promising prospects
of water recycling industry as encouraged by the PRC government, the Directors of the
Company believe there is no indication at the current stage that these assets may be

permanently impaired.

(iv) Ownership of certain land and buildings included in property, plant and equipment,
investment properties (Note 7) and land use rights (Note 8) with cost of Rmb918
million (2005: Rmb178 million) has yet to be or is in the process of being transferred
to the Group. As these assets are supported by legal sale and purchase agreements. The
Directors of the Company believe that the titles will be received in due course without

additional significant cost to the Group, if any.

) Buildings and structures and CIP include pipeline networks with carrying value of
approximately Rmb519 million and Rmb231 million respectively as at 31 December
2006 (2005: Rmb47 million and Rmb718 million).

R ARG A B2 7]
SEBAFEH




LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

6 Yk -~ Wb Kt () 6  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
() FERTHEGFEEHWT : (¢) Construction in progress comprised of following projects:
L HEX/E S
W5 B e s B
- H A i
Transfer
it 2006 4 to property, it 2006 4F
1H1H plantand 1231 H
As at equipment As at
W 1 January AR5 m and land 31 December
THR¥HAMR Budget 2006 Additions use rights 2006
Kl Sewage water processing
ISR - plants in Tianjin:
— T - Ji Zhuang Zi * 732,533 22,608 (565,670) 189,471
— B - Xian Yang Lu * 597,110 57,043 (587,866) 66,287
—dE - Bei Cang * 131,824 22,671 (112,290) 42,205
WS L Research and development center * 7,206 — (7,206) —
BTw&MEE Staff dormitory * 5,977 — (5,977) —
oAt Others * 629 7,204 (3,277) 4,556
ARt — Total -Company 1,475,279 109,526 (1,282,286) 302,519
ROk B T Tianjin Water Recycling Project 140,000 4,584 69,235 (707) 73,112
TSR T5 K Sewage water processing
JE B : plants in:
—LEFEE - Bao Ying, Jiangsu * 47,982 27,456 (75,438) — 235
—fREE - Chibi 97,000 26,585 10,998 — 37,583
b Others 244 2,662 (702) 2,204
ARF—EH Total -Group 1,554,674 219,877 (1,359,133) 415,418
B R Including: Capitalised borrowing costs
EA LA
— /AT - Company 73,485 10,929 (68,300) 16,114
—45EH - Group 76,953 12,874 (71,768) 18,059
* 2SI E R 2006 4F 12 7 31 B RECECRE * These projects have been substantially completed as at 31 December 2006 within budget.
BB AR o

i 5 A TR SR T A B A A B B B B
Wi o SR > AR = K75 7K i HE
12006 4F 1 H 1 HEHEARZ LIS
B RE A o R TECR 7 Rt & 1
2007 FENTER (KEE 1) ©

All the three sewage water processing plants in Tianjin were substantially
completed on 1 January 2006 and have commenced operations although
still in process of inspection by relevant authorities before commencing
commercial operations. The inspection process is expected to be completed

by end 2007 (Note 1(a)).

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited
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LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

BE VIR Investment properties
L
Group
2006 2005
2] Beginning of the year 93,411 —
BT R Payments made 10,754 119,411
RERBIE AT 5 ik Settlement of trade receivable in
(Fff ¥ (a)) lieu of cash (Note (a)) 16,314 —
T RERT Ah R Balance due — 36,589
120,479 156,000
Bk Less:
Y RS R (T 6) Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note 6) (1,907) (27,668)
T R (FEEE ) Transfer to land use right (Note 8) (2,251) (32,649)
(4,158) (60,317)
Pres L Depreciation charge (2,396) (2,272)
AR End of the year 113,925 93,411
A
Company
2006 2005
SER Beginning of the year 93,411 —
EfFEIE Payments made 10,754 119,411
- B REAT A5 Balance due — 36,589
104,165 156,000
WA Less:
Y R R (G 6) Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note 6) (1,907) (27,668)
A L RE (3 ) Transfer to land use right (Note 8) (2,251) (32,649)
(4,158) (60,317)
AAEYT Depreciation for the year (2,396) (2,272)
dER End of the year 97,611 93,411
T A TR OR B4R A B A ]

RN




LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

7 BEYE &) 7 Investment properties (Continued)

(a) HRAEH 2006 4F 10 J1 31 HET LA fhak > foiheh (a) Pursuant to an agreement dated 31 October 2006, certain properties located in the PRC were
B T 2E C AR R 2 (O B A transferred to the Group by a debror as settlement of trade receivable in lieu of cash.
Z 5 BRI -
A — 4 B ARG (LR 8 S R PR 1 e A Based on advice of an independent valuer and the management best estimates, the Directors
7o WAL > BOEW MY AT (B believe that the fair market values of the investment properties closely approximate their net
2006 4F 12 J1 31 H (A BRI {3 (ELAR 3 42 - book values as at 31 December 2006.

(b)  EAFEEY AL TR E (b)  Investment property of the company represents the apportioned cost of the portion of the
KM T4 = RO BR G RO AR « A — 1 Group’s office building located in the PRC leased to third parties. The fair value of the office
TS BCEAR AR > B2 A Z KM 2006 4F building at 31 December 2006 based on independent professional valuation report was
12 7131 HIAA T AR K 168,000,000 7C approximately Rmb168 million.

8 Lybf I BE 8  Land use rights

ASE B 7E 0 T RE RO S A TN The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments
R B A0 A6 A R T 3R B 2 AT 0 and their net carrying values are analysed as follows:
£ A
Group Company 237

#2005 4111 H As at 1 January 2005 578,554 574,692
[i'a=C/ESL YN Transfer from investment properties 32,649 32,649
2ty Accumulated amortisation (15,441) (15,356)
#2006 4F 1 H 1 H As at 1 January 2006 595,762 591,985
YNGR Additions for the year 114,357 —
W1 - R KA (HEE 6(c)) Transfer from property, plant and

equipment (Note 6(c)) 8,215 —
BEYEEA (55 7) Transfer from investment properties (Note 7) 2,251 2,251
ARAEHER S Amortisation charge for the year (16,119) (15,495)
12006 4E12 A 31 H As at 31 December 2006 704,466 578,741
ASEE R AT ol A RES A R R All of the Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and are held on medium
¥ 10 T 50 4ERY R IATH A0 - term leases of 10 to 50 years.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited

Annual Report 2006




LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 BEEAFBE

4R
e
Pl

R

AR B — 0 TP B K R M RS B
LTI AT 45% MR o WA R

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Investment in an associate

2006
Beginning of the year —
Acquisition 57,186
Share of profit 4,474

End of the year 61,660

The Group has a 45% interest in an unlisted associate, incorporated in Tianjin,

PRC. Details of the associate’s financial status are as follows:

BRI REG TR
J# 2006412 131 H WE 2006 45 12 )3 31 HIR4RRE
Asat For the year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2006
9 fifi WA FIim
Assets Liabilities Revenue Profit
KA BB A PR Tianjin International
Machinery Co., Ltd. 237,011 107,205 1,020,551 8,949
10. w4k i 65 3 5 9 10  Available-for-sale financial assets
M A
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
AR SR 4 [ 22 B 4 ) Unquoted equity investments in the
I L TRERR TR Group’s fellow subsidiaries
— A A - Available-for-sale financial assets 6,000 6,000 4,000 4,000

HI % S BB Y A FER AT REAE IR 2
V{0l T B o A T S o ] S st
ELAE A T B 7 45 JELf T T AR AN B
I T LAREAS > ABCE TR A 2
WAL SR « RS > LSS
T AT REH R A EAR K & B Y
filaTHEE -

As the fair value of these investments cannot be measured reliably because the
range of possible fair value estimates is wide and the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed, the investment is stated
at cost less impairment. The directors are of the view that under such circumstances,
it is also not possible to disclose the range of estimates within which a fair value is

highly likely to lie.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH



LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

11 ek 11  Other non-current assets

KM A
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZRRBATHAZ GEREG)) Restricted bank deposits (Note (i) 40,067 47,000 40,067 47,000
FLRIE H ) B R Prepayment for Fuyang
(GEREGD)) project (Note (ii)) 98,321 40,802 — —
He Others 3,758 7,173 — —
142,146 94,975 40,067 47,000
AR Notes:
[6) FEEAE AR AR U & R 1E B 31T AN ARG (i) These deposits represent collateral deposited with a financial institution as security for the issuance
A BRI PRI FE R 5 of the Company’s convertible bonds (Note 24).
(i) MR 20054F 12 A 18 HE&FT Mok » A% (i1) Pursuant to an agreement dated 18 December 2005, the Group obtained the right to use,
TG A o R 2 g v 5 /K R B A operate and maintain assets of a sewage plant in Fuyang, PRC (“Fuyang project”) at a
PR EE ((RBEE D MR BEAAR consideration of Rmb102 million for a term of 30 years effective 18 December 2005. As at 31
102800 > H120054F 12 H 18 HAERL » A1 December 2006 Rmb10.2 million remains to be settled.
304F o #% 2006 4712 7 31 H 1k » AAFHRIES
AR HE 1,002 80T
12 WEAA#E 12 Investments in subsidiaries
AN ERIE LTSGR G T The movement of the Company’s investments in unlisted investments is as follows:
AR At cost:
J 2005 412 71 31 H 31 December 2005 450,380
AAER TN Additions during the year 242,371
J& 2006 4F- 12 J1 31 H 31 December 2006 692,751

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited

Annual Report 2006




12 WaEAA8RYE (@)
i 2006 4E 12 7 31 H HBHHE 2 &) 0 S
W > B MHE A R AARETA

il

Bk 24 i) 5
Name of subsidiary

7 HR B R
Incorporated in the PRC:

BUMRADKBARRAT GEREGI))

Hangzhou Tianchuang Water Co., Ltd.

(Note (i1))

il 35 81 S8 K B AT PR
Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd.

KHAKA R AH
(HK )
Tianjin Water Recycling Co.,

(“TWRC”)

BINAZEK B A R F
Guizhou Capital Water Co., Ltd.

RIS A PR A
Fuyang Capital Water Co., Ltd.

TREERIZE KA IR T
Chibi Capital Water Co., Ltd.

BRI KT AT R AT
Baoying Capital Water Co., Ltd.

LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

12 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

EX =30

Principal activities

TS K R HRA A R
A Mg

Municipal sewage water processing
and recycled water plant construction
operation, maintenance and

training

T 7K B HR B K Rt et
R MM

Municipal sewage water processing
and recycled water plant construction
operation, maintenance and
management

KA ~ UK SOER B R
Bk He st

Production of recycled water,
equipment development and
technical consulting for water
recycling business.

B 7K PR A R Ak
Development and construction of
municipal sewage water plants

HBTE 7K pEH J K RER
R~ M

Municipal sewage water processing
and recycled water plant construction
operation, maintenance and
management

TS K R R I K Rt ~
B R

Municipal sewage water processing
and recycled water plant construction
operation, maintenance and
management

TS K IR B K R
A g

Municipal sewage water processing
and recycled water plant construction
operation, maintenance and
management

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

companies, are as follows:

SEBAFEH

BRBA
Paid-up
capital
(H#1)

(In million)

N
Rmb257

AR
Rmb120

NG
Rmb100

N
Rmb100

NI
Rmb45

N
Rmb35

N
Rmb38

B¥

Investment
(H#E)

(In million)

180

108

98

95

44

27

Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2000, all of which are limited liability

ESEELEL B

Interest
held
(%)

70

90

98

95

99.9

99.75

70



LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

12

13

Mg A a8 (5

b 4 ) 4

Name of subsidiary

RE RSN AR AR
(TRIEREM )

Tianjin Capital New Materials

Co., Lud. (“TCNM”)

UL RIS A PR A

Honghu Capital Water Co., Ltd.

JA R W EE AL

Incorporated in Hong Kong:

KEAERE (Fi)
AR

Tianjin Capital Environmental
Protection (HK) Co., Ltd.

i

JE R
T
HES M

W AR IR
TR B

2006 4E 12131 H » A

150 B oA B & ] s IR A S AR (2005

) e

B R T R R 0 51 8 B AR
&4 Et AR 2,500 B

NE¥ 1,400 870) -

12 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

B EA
Paid-up B FihrA R
capital Investment Interest
Et >3 (H#7) (H#7x) held
Principal activities (In million) (In million) (%)
R RTRY B NS 26 58
Manufacture of new types Rmb38
of construction materials
TS K BB I K R R NS 18 90
AL M Rmb20
Municipal sewage water processing
and recycled water plant construction
operation, maintenance and
management
[EENA G 2 LIRS 63 100
Sewage water treatment 11 780 & It i
and water recycling business 7.8 million
ordinary
shares of
US$ 1 each
—_— 24
693
13 Inventories
M #l
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Raw materials 4,233 2,918 2,610 2,510
Finished goods 5,424 6,423 — —
Other consumables 2,182 2,487 89 104
11,839 11,828 2,699 2,614
Less: Provision for declines in
the value of inventories (4,000) — — —
7,839 11,828 2,699 2,614

NAEBHANR

TG (20054 -

realisable value (2005: nil).

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited

Annual Report 2006

As at 31 December 2006, about Rmb1.5 million of inventories were carried at net

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of sales amounted

to about Rmb25 million (2005: Rmb14 million).
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LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

B0 RE Wk 14  Trade receivables
G o REGRIA A p Details of the trade receivables are as follows:
g A
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
KA - Due from TSC
— 5K R PRI - Water processing services 283,788 45,544 283,788 45,544
— 15K R Rk - Construction of plants (Note 1(b))
(BEE 1)) 466,185 466,185 466,185 466,185
749,973 511,729 749,973 511,729
oty Others 43,210 22,276 16,473 16,323
793,183 534,005 766,446 528,052
Wk RHER A Less: non-current portion (749,973) (466,185) (749,973) (466,185)
Pk ki Current portion 43,210 67,820 16,473 61,867

RIEA TR > Pk a) e A B
SELHERIAR - A TEEE TAL
Al (FEE1(b)) » Ik 75200744 H >
A w) BRLPE K 2 Rk R G B A e
o PRIHE KA R e P b A A
RERAN A B - T 20064F 12 H 31
H o ia S i B A 2 AR 7.50 18
TG o I - 2 AR {E REMCHE K A R 3K
TEL R A0 375 108 0 0 2 ]

MR GETE] > i 2006 4F 12 1 31 HIE
WCHRAK 2 L iR T (B R 7.50 16
TG (2005 4F + AR¥ .66 f870) CHE
BRI — R B )RR
EEE 5 REGRIO AR BT

1524
LERAA

One to two years
Within one year

Under the Co-operative Agreement, TSC would sell certain of its assets to the

Company upon completion and verification (Note 1(b)). Accordingly, in April

2007, the Company reached an agreement with TSC on a repayment plan, whereby

TSC will use the above mentioned assets to settle the construction fees owed to the

Company. As at 31 December 20006, these assets amount to about Rmb750 million.

As such, the Directors believe that the amount due from TSC is fully recoverable

by asset swap.

Pursuant to the repayment plan, the carrying value of balance due from TSC as at

31 December 2006 of Rmb750 million (2005: Rmb466 million) has been

reclassified to trade receivables due after one year resulting in ageing of the trade

receivable as follows:

B gt
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
749,973 466,185 749,973 466,185
43,210 67,820 16,473 61,867
793,183 534,005 766,446 528,052

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH



(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

15

16

HB Bk B AT MRk
HE R Other receivables
TR Prepayments

FE L MRS IR T AT AR 8 i 7 S
PR > OB 6 0 R T 1 (1 B - (LA
o

LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15  Other receivables and prepayments

%M gl
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
17,235 5,872 83,866 4,600
11,125 4,016 253 —
28,360 9,888 84,119 4,600

The carrying values of other receivables and prepayments approximate their fair

values due to their short-term maturity.

Bl o B 84T & i 16  Cash and bank balances
Ll #l
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Bl RARATAT 3K Cash on hand and in bank 773,811 800,294 647,203 544,462
RHERMERESIRE Restricted bank deposits included in
SZIREATAER (e 1) other non-current assets (Note 11) (40,067) (47,000) (40,067) (47,000)
733,744 753,294 607,136 497,462
243
SHERAELEE - Balance include:
TS K B A Special funds for construction of sewage
HHES water processing plants 103,846 281,742 96,022 266,329

MBERERM T > B & LRATHERE
i TAIER:

Cash and bank balances include the following for the purposes of the cash flow

statement:
%M A
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
B4 AR T A5 R Cash and bank balances 733,744 753,294 607,136 497,462
ST RERATAF 3K — LR A Restricted bank deposits-current
(BFF&E 19(b)(ii)) (Note 19(b)(iii)) (15,000) (9,182) (6,000) (9,000)
718,744 744,112 601,136 488,462

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited

Annual Report 2006
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17 AR 17
AN TR ~ BT SR AR
B)RIIWT o BrA Ao al B0 4 By g
P T A 8% 1 TR0 9 B o

J£2005 41 7 1H At 1 January 2005
AT R S Conversion of

convertible bonds
2005412 H 31 H At 31 December 2005
AR (FEG)) Reclassification (Note (i)
G AT R Conversion of

convertible bonds

Ji 2006 4F 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2006

A BB AE EREIR A5 I BT ety
H B (6 2 v B 5 50 o e L By -
FTAT A BB H A4S 7 T 44 52 A7 (] 4 e

2

ﬁﬁ o
i

(i) AN F A TR 2006 4 3 71 20 AT
A FIBEIRBOR K BT B AT IRA R (TR
HETTE L) B O SR 0 SR ) O
EXR L TAG VNG RPN
A F BRI 2006 4F- 3 11 8 H R A Btk
RA AT 10 3.7 IR Ay - BRI A
41,866,631 Mt o MHES BRCER - R AR
AN R FRHEDE 63.05% TFREEI T 59.91% -

AR R IRHESY BHORAR - BR T SR AL
AR A BB 41,866,631 153 1L 4 Rl o
TEBNRLASL » FCBR AT I i St s PR
TR o RHTTBOEAT A 032 FIR M K
TITECPE IOHE 53 8 56 UK = 4R I 25 ] B LI
R AREL 10% (IR ©

(W3 T SR A AT 4 78 oy AR oe)
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Share capital

Movement of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully paid up capital is tabled
below. All of the Company’s shares are ordinary shares with par value of one

Renminbi.

Al H B
“A shares” “H shares”
[LES Z
Wk  EERR
Non  Restricted  REBIAY ikl s
circulating ~ circulating  Circulating /Nt Circulating ol
shares shares shares Subtotal shares Total
877,505 — 112,495 990,000 340,000 1,330,000
— — 658 658 — 658
877,505 — 113153 990,658 340,000 1330658

(877,505) 835,638 41,867 — — —

— — 8 8 — 8

— 835,638 155,028 990,666 340,000 1,330,666

“A” share represent shares listed on the Shanghai Securities Exchange and “H”
shares represent shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. All the “A”

and “H” shares rank pari passu in all respects.

Note:

(i) On 20 March 2006, the revised stock reform plan proposed by the Company’s controlling
shareholder, Tianjin Municipal Investment Co., Ltd. (“TMICL”), was approved by the
Company’s shareholders of A shares. According to the stock reform plan, TMICL will pay to
the Company’s sharcholders of A shares as registered as at 8 March 2006, 3.7 shares for each 10
shares held resulting in total payment of 41,866,631 shares. After the stock reform, TMICLs

equity interest in the Company reduced from 63.05% to 59.91%.

After the Company’s stock reform, all of the non-circulating shares were converted into restricted
circulating shares except for the 41,866,631 shares paid to the Company’s A share holders
which became non-restricted circulating shares. Shares held by TMICL are restricted to the
extent that within 3 years after the stock reform TMICL can only dispose a maximum of 10%
of its total shares. All other restricted circulating share holders may dispose of their interests one

year after the share reform.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH
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(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

18 kit 18  Reserves
A R S IR The reconciliation and movement of other reserves are as follows:
g
5t 25 il
YA fif — Wil Convertible BB
e 3L Capital General bonds Retained it
Group reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
(B 3EE))
(Note(i))

200541 7 1 H &5k Balance at 1 January 2005 69,289 174,349 100,215 630,608 974,461
AAERF Profit for the year — — — 177,475 177,475
AL ER AT S Profit appropriation to statutory

BB 43 i common reserves — 26,372 — (26,372) —
s Convertible bonds

— 2 — Redeemed — — (74,126) — (74,126)

— Bl — Converted 3,343 — — — 3,343
B2 2004 4FA7 B9 JRS Dividend relating to 2004 — — — (133,000) (133,000)
— MG A R E S A Contributed surplus of a subsidiary 2,550 — — — 2,550
2005 4F 12 A 31 H &k Balance at 31 December 2005 75,182 200,721 26,089 648,711 950,703
AAER A Profit for the year — — — 158,689 158,689
BABERBARE Profit appropriation to statutory

BRI (BREE ) common reserve(Note (ii)) — 19,635 — (19,635) —
mlEEREY: (F5E19(d)  Convertible bonds(Note 19(d))

— — Converted 27 — — — 27 "
52005 A BRI IRE Dividend relating to 2005 — — — (53,227) (53,227) 2
2006 4% 12 J 31 H &5 #k Balance at 31 December 2006 75,209 220,356 26,089 734,538 1,056,192
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LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18

2005451 H 1 H&: Bk
ARAEZLF

BAE RGNS

19 25 4 B

D e

— e R

— Bk

$12004 4FA B AR

2005 4F 12 H 31 H&: %

ARAEZR
BAECESBAES

WA R (BFEEGE))
RS (5 19(d)
— ik

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

18  Reserves (Continued)

A
Company

Balance at 1 January 2005

Profit for the year

Profit appropriation to statutory
common reserves:

Convertible bonds

— Redeemed

— Converted

Dividend relating to 2004

Balance at 31 December 2005

Profit for the year

Profit appropriation to statutory
common reserve (Note (ii))

Convertible bonds(Note 19(d))

— Converted

H12005 44 B MBS Dividend relating to 2005

2006 4E 12 A 31 H &% Balance at 31 December 2006

G Notes:
(i) A 4 S AT IS A P IR O 1 o T (i)

(i)

At TS LA AR B s R B g A T AL
i o

Wittt e AL AR A R4 (2005 ¢ ELAGEE
N B 66,900,000 TCAEE A £ dx 0 ARSI
B A AL BT AL BB AR o

RURAA Rl BRE MR e G R AR L R
IR BIT 73 A2 ) LR A 1090 35 7 28 B
AT (AE MRS B THEA N 50% £
1) o BEAAB RN EHLEIERERE T
JRRZ FirsHR

WCIE I 2 AR AR A P R SR~ e
AN FEREEHE SR A RIREA o

FEBARAERRR & E LR S - AR
AR AR A AT R B
SRBAAMER R EAR 25% -

(i)

i
o 25 ik

A —JRGME  Convertible PR R
Capital General bonds Retained At
reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
(BiHREG))
(Note(i))
69,289 174,349 100,215 636,865 980,718
— — — 187,067 187,067
— 26,372 — (26,372) —
— — (74,126) — (74,126)
3,343 — — — 3,343
— — — (133,000) (133,000)
72,632 200,721 26,089 664,560 964,002
— — — 156,687 156,687
— 17,013 — (17,013) —
27 — — — 27
— — — (53,227) (53,227)
72,659 217,734 26,089 751,007 1,067,489

Capital reserve fund comprises share premium arising from the issuance of shares. This fund

can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or for issuance of bonus shares.

General reserves represent the statutory common reserve. (2005: Include the statutory provident
fund amounting to Rmb66.9 million which in accordance with relevant regulations issued by

Ministry of Finance has been transferred to statutory common reserve).

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, it is required to transfer 10% of its net
profit as shown in the accounts prepared under PRC accounting regulations to the statutory
common reserve, until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. Transfers to this reserve

must be made before the distribution of dividends to shareholders.

This reserve shall only be used to make up losses; to expand the Company’s production operation;

or to increase the capital of the Company.

Upon approval by a resolution of a shareholders’ general meeting, the Company may convert
this reserve into its share capital, but the amount of this reserve remaining unconverted must

not be less than 25% of the registered capital.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH
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(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

18 ki (&) 18  Reserves (Continued)
AR () Notes: (Continued)
ARy AL S AR 17,013,000 7 (B The Directors of the Company have proposed to transfer Rmb17,013,000, being 10% of the
R ep B L DU A A R 2006 4R net profit of the Company for 2006 prepared under PRC accounting regulations to the statutory
FiH# 10%) (20054 = AR # 26,372,000 7T) 4 common reserve (2005: Rmb26,372,000).
19 £ 19  Borrowings
M A
AR Group Company
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
R Non-current:
SRITRHK Bank borrowings (a) 1,718,750 705,500 1,145,000 635,000
JEAT B3R Loans payable © 163,636 180,000 163,636 180,000
AR Convertible bonds () 374,844 362,623 374,844 362,623
2,257,230 1,248,123 1,683,480 1,177,623
W IRy Less: current portion (99,250) (62,500) (74,000) (60,000)
2,157,980 1,185,623 1,609,480 1,117,623
R Current:
RIMET R Current portion of 247
I A A non-current bank
borrowings (a) 99,250 62,500 74,000 60,000
TR THER Short-term bank borrowings  (b) 691,000 595,000 676,000 590,000
JEAT B Loans payable © 108,264 91,828 16,364 —
898,514 749,328 766,364 650,000
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(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

19 3% (4 19  Borrowings (Continued)
(a) RHISUTEER (@  Long-term bank borrowings
e AF
AR Group Company
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
FEFORH - Borrowings from:
W 7% B B A 1 State Development Bank (i) 545,000 585,000 545,000 585,000
DR A T China Everbright Bank (ii) 450,000 100,000 400,000 50,000
ol TR ERAT Industrial Commerce
Bank of China (iii) 250,000 — — —
o B R R SR A T China Construction
Bank (iv) 233,750 20,000 — —
GNEES CITIC Industrial Bank W) 200,000 — 200,000 —
TR AT Bank of China (vi) 40,000 — — —
1,718,750 705,000 1,145,000 635,000
AR BRI NE These borrowings mature as follows:
e |
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
—HELAR Within one year 99,250 62,500 74,000 60,000
AR In the second year 416,250 136,500 334,000 134,000
S AR RS TUARIN In the third to fifth year 466,750 448,500 337,000 391,000
HAEDIR After the fifth year 736,500 57,500 400,000 50,000
1,718,750 705,000 1,145,000 635,000
AR Notes:
(i) o 1 Y R T BRI A DR 4 Rl (i) This borrowing is secured by TMEB guarantee together with certain of its fee collection
DU i e 2 R0 - R RAT rights, and bears interest ranging from 6.1% to 6.4%. (2005: 5.8% to 6.1%) per annum.

HIERZRRT 6.1% % 6.4% (2005
i 058% % 6.1%) ©

(ii) WA R PEK A TR (5 K 2 i (ii) This borrowing is secured by the TSC’s right to receive sewage water processing fees
AT By A DA S O T B S AT B together with TMICL guarantee and bears interest rate ranging from 5.02% to 6.84%
ARRPELR  SERIRIT 5.02% & (2005: 5% to 5.8%) per annum.

6.84% (2005 4F : 5% % 5.8%) °

AT M 47 A
RN
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(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

19 3k (4 19  Borrowings (Continued)
(a) EUaTRx (8 (@  Long-term bank borrowings (Continued)
R (8D Notes: (Continued)
(iii) S Eh A AR AR RS R > Bl (i) This borrowing is secured by the Company’s guarantee and bears interest ranging from
S RN B SRAT LA 1R 305 3R 6.1% to 6.4% per annum.

2 BIRFRZERT-6.1% % 6.4% °

(v)  HEREAE AR 190 Tt (i) The balance includes Rmb190 million secured by the right to receive tap water and
FLACK ISR 75 7K S TR A REAE: 2 sewage water processing fees. The remaining balance of about Rmb 44 million is secured
AT BREA R W4,4008 T » T by the Company’s guarantee. These borrowings bear interest ranging from 6.1% to
AL AL R IR o 3255 i S AE A 6.4% (2005: 6.1%) per annum.

HKAT6.1% % 6.4% (2005 4 ¢

6.1%) -

(v) TR MR K o AR R A ) The borrowing is an unsecured loan and bears interest ranging from 6.1% to 6.4% per
T6.1% % 6.4% ° annum.

(vi) M A AR AR AR B o (53K (vi) This borrowing is secured by the Company’s guarantee and bears interest ranging from
HAEFIR AT 6.19% 5 6.4% © 6.1% to 6.4% per annum.
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19 Bk (4
(b) EIMEAT %

R kaeT -
B R0
B LR

R B SR
JLRERT T
LR AR SR AR AT

HR B B A T
HiAty

bR

19  Borrowings (Continued)

(i) H R EETIT R B AT PR IR -

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(b)  Short-term bank borrowings

g A
iR Group Comapny
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
Borrowings from:
China Minsheng Bank (i) 200,000 300,000 200,000 300,000
Industrial Commerce
Bank of China 190,000 — 190,000 —
Industrial Bank 100,000 — 100,000 —
Beijing Bank (i1) 100,000 — 100,000 —
Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank (iii) 65,000 100,000 50,000 100,000
Huaxia Bank (i) 36,000 — 36,000 —
Others — 195,000 — 190,000
691,000 595,000 676,000 590,000
Notes:
(i) Guaranteed by TMICL.
(i1) Guaranteed by Tianjin Expressway Investment and Construction Development

(ii) R K HE T R 0 B A R R

fk -

(i) AAERAA WL, 700E T8 T A7 AT 2
2 SRS 1,500 BT (FERE

16)

(iv) ARG AERRAET 5.5% 2

6.1% °

BZE 20064 12 A3 HILFRE > H
i PA L B B LB T
FIRFHE > SO MR (R U A

i

Company.

(i)  Include Rmb15 million borrowings secured by a bank deposit of Rmb17 million (Note

16).

(iv) All short-term borrowings bear interest ranging from 5.5% to 6.1% per annum.

The carrying amounts of all borrowings approximate their fair values as at

31 December 2006 either due to their short-term maturity or because they

bear interest of prevailing market rates throughout their maturity period.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH



(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

19 3% (&)
(© MK

LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19  Borrowings (Continued)

() Loans payable:

3G A
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
=M Long-term
JEAT - Due to:
— KEWERE GHG)) -TMEB (Note(i)) 163,636 180,000 163,636 180,000
fatl] Short-term
HELT Due to:
— KT -TMEB
— [ BRI RS 0 *  Current portion of
(FFREx)) long term loans (Note(1)) 16,364 — 16,364 —
—HA (GEREG)) +  Others (Note(ii)) 81,215 81,215 — —
— KHEWBUN (3EBEGi)  -Tianjin Municipal
Government (Note(iii)) 10,685 10,613 — —
108,264 91,828 16,364 —

ey

)

(i)

(iii)

R T 2 A BN R
L8 ETT S 2005 415K E IR Ak 3
THEAR T o AR EAE2007 )
VAR B A o IRt > IR B R
2007 42 I BTG 4 2 N R
o FHAIF
RIGAFE A 5% » e LARRE E 2 > A
F S — AR R AR N0.3 08 ¥ 43 -

1,600 #0 (2005 4F © %)

DR T BUR I SR I AR 4
8,100 87T (2005 4F : AR 8,100 #
g6 o HLAEEE B S O

T REREGLD TR o

AR 1,100 BIG (2005 4+ AR
1,100 #78) Ayfif AR E BN R E
BRPT > R ACHE T I K ] LR A
B o DL SO AN TS K H A
7 R LR 5 R T

Notes:

(iif)

A Rmb180 million was taken from TMEB during 2005 specifically for construction of
sewage water processing plants. The loan is repayable in equal instalments over eleven
years from 2007. Therefore, the current portion of this loan due in 2007 amounts to
approximately Rmb16 million (2005: Nil). The loan bears interest at 5% per annual
for the first six years. From the seventh year to maturity, the interest will be based on

the one-year deposit plus 0.3% premium.

Amount due to TMEB of Rmb81 million (2005: 8 1millin) is specifically for the same

purpose and under same terms as loan stated in Note (iii) below.

The Rmb11 million (2005: Rmb11 million) was borrowed from a Tianjin Municipal
Government body for the construction of the Group's water recycling plant. The loan
is interest free and the method and date of repayment which is supposed to be determined

after the completion of the said plant has yet to be finalised.
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LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 Bk (4

(c)

(d)

HEAT £k (%) ©
DA B B E i) A i) 81 R 1A

R, 1008 TR AR 1,100 T

BEFI G B e R o i

e AR A AR AP > TE R A
WEME R WB AR o

RIUMER EER A PEA IR
T

WA v e 9 25 (d)

AR 2 A R

AR (TR

AN AL 200447 H 1 H #1200
O A BT A FES 0 0
T (B 25 AN RHE 100 00 - fE
2004 “F7 A 19 HTE L5555
Jir Eize sy o AT A R E S R
MR NRWE 124800  1BREET
24N 3,500 BT > 84T
EARITMEZFEEMARE
11.65 {875

T

RS LB S /N
200548 7 HE[H T 8,239,020
IMES - HIL > &%
B N 7,400 & Tk
T o R R [ ) A A8 2 R
1,650 BT -

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

19  Borrowings (Continued)

Loans payable: (Continued)
The repayment scheme for the Rmb81 million and Rmb11 million loans
mentioned in (ii) and (iii) above is still being negotiated. As the terms are

uncertain, these loans have been classified as current liabilities.

The fair values of long-term loans payable approximate their book values.

Convertible bonds payable:

2006 2005

Liability component of
convertible bonds 374,844 362,623
Number of units (1,000) 3,721 3,721

On 1 July 2004, the Company issued 12 million “A share” convertible bonds
certificates at face value of Rmb100 each (“Bonds”), which was listed on
Shanghai Stock Exchange on 19 July 2004. The aggregate amount of the
Bonds issued was Rmb1,200 million. The net cash received from issuance
of bonds is about Rmb1,165 million after deducting the issuance expenses

of about Rmb35 million.

. Redemption:

In accordance with the term of the bonds, 8,239,020 units were
redeemed in August 2005. Accordingly, the equity component of
the bonds redeemed of Rmb74 million was reversed. The premium

for the redemption was Rmb16.5 million.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH



(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

19 |3 (5
() HEATERESE (4D

B -

JA 2006 4F > A ILAE(HE £ 400
HICH IR S A A FIRY
A BB - RS 2 B
AEH6.08 7T °

FIT TR
RIS

BRI SR 2 )
ZHHTE B AT RO RERD, -

AR EE - TIEIAR
BN LA AR 51 B DA
J A PR A6 JF iR A S5 T
GRIEEE RS O
B P A A 1 ) B )
Tt A Ah i 5 01 1R
A BRI B - 5
Z RS2 R B B
PA5.6% 2 37 Bl AR B F
HEHH o

A ] 5 NI -

JA 2006 4 12 1 31 B > i
BRI R AR
o BB A By AR 3.75
fET (2005 © AR 3.63 1%
) R EBAERL
56% (2005 4F : 5.6%) -°

LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19  Borrowings (Continued)

(d)  Convertible bonds payable: (Continued)

Conversion:

During 2006, Bonds with aggregate value of Rmb4 million (2005:
Rmb 4 million) were converted into the Company’s A share at

Rmb6.08 per share.

Recognition and subsequent measurement:
At inception:

The classification of the liability component and the equity conversion

component were determined at issuance of the bonds.

The value of the liability component, included in long-term
borrowings, was carried at amortised cost and calculated using a

market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The

[\
wn
O

residual amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
component, is included in shareholders’ equity in other reserves net
of deferred income taxes. Interest expense on the bonds is calculated
using the effective interest method by applying the effective interest

rate of 5.6% to the liability component.

Upon redemption and conversion:

The value of the remaining liability component of the bonds at 31
December 2006 is estimated at about Rmb375 million (2005:
Rmb363 million) using the effective interest rate of 5.6% (2005:
5.6%).
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19 a3k (4

(d)  MEMTREBRE (5

FITEH

AR S B TR R
Jr A7 AT B © 722000
HoH30H » ] A
A ] ~ Il B
SRS > RIS 2 SR
I Z Wt R INFIER - 2005
A ER G AT R S
S IEIIRE > AH BRI 3517 2 F
A NREE 2,300 EoC
J8 2005 4F o T SR AR RO A
Vi 0 R R S > A
BT A ARK 750
H T B {5 25 A LA
5

(B FE5 RIS W i A7 8 25 2 AR T- )
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
19  Borrowings (Continued)

(d)  Convertible bonds payable: (Continued)

. Issuance expense:

The issuance expense of the convertible bonds is being amortised
over the duration of the bonds. Any unamortized amount would be
charged to income statement in the year when the bonds are
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled before the maturity
date on 30 June 2009. In August 2005, upon redemption of a certain
portion of these bonds, the related issuance expense that was written
off amounted to about Rmb23million. In 2005, the unamortised
issuance expense of about Rmb7.5 million was offset with convertible

bonds payable upon the adoption of new HKERS.

R ARG A B2 7]
SEBAFEH




(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

19 |3 (5
WA WA 2 ()

(d)

&0 F Bk
() ESHPRERRAT

KW AT (TR
N RAERFRSER
3lf phy AR w42 MR
EEAT YN Y&
& o AIIA 2005 4F 7 H
1 H &2 % 5200946
J130 H A S AL
A A o B R
ERERANRY 7.7
JC o WA R HER
LA ) AR T M 1
PR o BRIE 2 A
0 M ] - R ]
TR > SR
2009 4F- 6 71 30 H Jizh i
W% S HINFEA S8
100% M > A 5
FEFTRE - A
SIS A B
i B A E R E
KR B 2 B 2 8
) A

LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19  Borrowings (Continued)

(d)  Convertible bonds payable: (Continued)

. Principal terms of bonds:

(M)

The Bonds, guaranteed by the Construction Bank of China,
Tianjin Branch (“the guarantor”) and counter-guaranteed by
TMICL, the Company’s controlling shareholder, to the
guarantor, are convertible into the Company’s A share at any
time on and after 1 July 2005 and prior to 30 June 2009. The
initial conversion price of the Bonds was set as Rmb7.7 per
share and the Company is entitled to revise the conversion
price during the conversion period based on the market price
of the Company’s shares. Unless previously redeemed,
converted or purchased and cancelled, the Bonds will be
redeemed within 5 days after maturity date on 30 June 2009
at 100% of the principal amount and accrued interest in the
fifth year plus an interest compensation for the difference
between the five times of bond interest of the fifth year and

actual total interest paid in the 5 years.
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19 Bk (4
WA WA 2 (A)
AR T B ()

SR IT 1.7%
2.7% W FIHRFTE o
AN THEA A
NBIFLE > AR R
5 R T ) S5 S 4 R
G B A [ 2 A7
FOM AR P08 o 3
2005 4 12 71 31 A
1AM > A R e
R B i 2 P B4
AR 1,900 &
(2004 4F-: A B 1,400
) o

5
=t

AN E R R
T4 B
Jr R B
A 102% 730
A FE B R S5 I £
F o MR RN
J# 30 R4 5 H I
B 20 H > A Ak
T A 2 0 i 1Y
130% °

s

LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

19  Borrowings (Continued)

Convertible bonds payable: (Continued)
Principal terms of bonds: (Continued)

These Bonds bear interest ranging from 1.7% to 2.7%. The
actual interest payable to the bond holders will be based on
the carrying bond interest rate and adjusted according to the
five-year fixed deposit rate published by the State. For the
period ended in 31 December 2005, the Company accrued
the related bonds interest of about Rmb19 million (2004:
Rmb14 million).

The Company has the option to redeem the bonds one year
after its issuance through its maturity in whole or in part at
102% of par value plus current year’s interest, provided that
during conversion period, the closing prices of the A shares
for any 20 days in 30 consecutive trading days are not more

than 130% of the conversion price.

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)
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(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

19 |3 (5 19  Borrowings (Continued)
(d) MEAFwRRAES (A (d  Convertible bonds payable: (Continued)
e [0 B () . Principal terms of bonds: (Continued)
(EEERRENGIE 250/ The Bonds holder has the option to resell the bond to the
HH AR R E RN Company in the conversion period in whole or in part
PR - A2 according to their maturity period, provided that during the
AR T AL conversion period, the closing prices of the A shares for any
GRS DN 20 days in 30 consecutive trading days are less than 70% of
A 30 A S By H Y the conversion price.

20 H > AJBAYIL
B AR B R E

70% °

(i) MREBEHFOGK R (i)  Pursuant to terms of the Bonds, the conversion price has been
200541231 H > revised downwards from the initial Rmb7.7 to Rmb3.9 as at
BECHP AR 31 December 2005. There was no change during 2006.
L NPTAN TEUNL

[\
wn
~

3.9 JC o B fE AL
2006 ¥ A s o
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LA BB M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

20 BEFHBE 20  Deferred income tax
AR SR B AR AT P A B B U0 T B Movement of the Group’s deferred income tax is as follows:
e LA
Group and Company
2006 2005
B BB R Deferred tax assets:
=) Beginning of the year — —
TR G AR (W5E 25) Recognised in the income statement (Note 25) 2,288 —
R End of the year 2,288 —
WA
Group and Company
2006 2005
BB Deferred tax liabilities:
()| Beginning of the year 5,691 43,799
PRANE I Gt EAIES 39 SR baR B Opening adjustment for the adoption of HKAS 39 — (9,964)
TR G R AERR (WFsE 25) Recognised in the income statement (Note 25) (3,329) (8,303)
TERERR TR B Tax charged to equity — (19,841)
AR End of the year 2,362 5,691
21 MEAT SRk B 3G & HEAT Ak 21  Trade and other payables
EaL] A
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
JEAT R AR Construction costs payable 64,696 70,547 47,261 70,547
TRCE B B Advances of pipeline connection 50,431 11,209 — —
e Ao B L 4 2 Payable for purchase of property,
i plant and equipment 30,371 50,512 — 36,589
JEAT R % Payable to Fuyang Construction
(RERE 11(ii)) Committee (Note 11(ii)) 10,200 — — —
TACIER (PEKZA 7] Advance receivable from TSC 27,385 38,594 27,385 27,385
it di Accrued expenses 11,879 7,266 7,805 6,050
B o) BEfT 3K Trade payables 9,852 8,414 3,563 2,774
HE Others 48,444 17,231 62,285 25,322
253,258 203,773 148,299 168,667

WA R RS AR E
B A5F 3 i T (B 2 A0 1B (20 4
i o

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximates their fair value due to

their short-term maturities.

2006 412 A 31 B » KZHE 5 MR
R BRI 1 — 4R o

As at 31 December 20006, the majority of trade payables are aged within one year.

R ARG A B2 7]
SEBAFEH




LA BB RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(B A R R A A B8 oy AR T )

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

22 YRS BN 22 Expense by nature
FEAER &M > Y TR AR Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing costs and administrative
BB AN &R T costs are analyzed as follows:

BE 12 A 31 HI4ERE
Year ended 31 December

2006 2005
s L ke 2 Depreciation and amortisation expenses 139,339 70,892
1§ B4R FIPA S (FfF3E23) Staff costs (Note 23) 55,138 41,678
B % Urilities 82,009 33,742
Hefs M RER Repair and maintenance expenses 29,775 22,111
PR SR BT RE Raw materials and consumables used 24,827 13,666
K HE T S T R RO A E Management fee to Toll Fee Collection Office 8,164 7,262
B I (E Impairment of assets 7,760 —
A% BRI 4 Auditors’ remuneration 3,840 3,380
HEYIE - WUB Kt Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 971 706
b S RS AR B B 5 Operating lease rentals for land and buildings 2,648 —
He Others 69,931 49,972
424,402 243,409
23 @ B A B 3 23 Employee benefit expense
(@ EEBEAHZSHWT : (@  The analysis of employee benefit expense is as follows:
259
BE 12 H 31 B4R -
Year ended 31 December
2006 2005
TG L4 Wiages and salaries 40,382 30,300
i PR IR A Social security costs 4,543 4,264
IRRE BA — e Pension costs — defined contribution plans 3,565 1,915
Hewmf Other benefits 6,648 5,199
55,138 41,678
(b) I R WA B N (b)  Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
SRR T A ) 2 S AR The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to Directors of the Company
mr e during the year are as follows:
BE 12 H 31 B4R
Year ended 31 December
2006 2005
B4 Fees 624 624
W KL eme Salaries and other emoluments 1,157 1,188
IRIRAR R # Ak Contribution to retirement benefit scheme 24 21
1,805 1,833
AR SO A L I A T R Emoluments paid to independent non-executive directors amounted to
il N ¥ 624,000 7T - B BIFELE Rmb624,000 during the year have been included in the above balance (2005:
PhEgRE R (2005 4 0 AR Rmb624,000).
624,000 7€) °
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

23 EEWMAEE (&) 23 Employee benefit expense (Continued)
(b) EFREGHAFBEHHN () (b)  Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (Continued)
AR P 2 = s A 4 A Details of emoluments of individual directors and supervisors are set out as
T below:
BRE 12 1 31 HIL4EE
Year ended 31 December
2006 2005
kK iyiie 3 Executive Directors:
EHE Ma Baiyu 150 150
i R Gu Qifeng 399 401
IR Tan Zhaofu 100 100
Fifiz Wang Zhanying 100 100
L An Pindong 100 100
(L Fu Yana 332 358
AT Non-executive Directors:
FE Gao Baoming 208 208
[h = Gao Zongze 208 208
T Wang Xiangfei 208 208
1,805 1,833
TR R AT T A2 m) o 2 ) 3 None of the Directors of the Company received emoluments in excess of
M 1,000,000 TG HK$1,000,000 during the year.
(c) s v AL () Five highest paid individuals
ARAR FEAE ] e e N O L0 A The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for
FERA (20054 : Wi4) #5 - the year include 2 (2005: 2) Directors of the Company whose emoluments
A MEAE b SCR AT R are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to
B o AR SR T HAR =4 (2005 the remaining 3 (2005: 3) individuals during the year are as follows:
o Z2) AL A R
BE 12 0 31 HIR4EE
Year ended 31 December
2006 2005
FEAH 4 B AN 4 Salaries and other emoluments 921 732
ARRAR A Contribution to retirement benefit scheme 36 32
957 764

AT M 47 A
RN
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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Finance costs

25

FEE -
— AT
— R AR P AR I T B A

W AR

Z R SRAT A A T-E B
(BfFsE 1)

TR 5 1 B A

e A

FELR AL

VEEY K<4ii] 25
R P A 2 L A s A RERR L LR (Z
TRA M) o WURAE R B2 A U T
RBLE B o PRI T E A
BAT.5% RIEEBAE33% (2005 -
33%) o

BE 12 A 31 HI4ERE
Year ended 31 December

2006 2005
Interest expense on:
- bank borrowings 111,920 60,723
- convertible bonds wholly repayable
within five years 22,828 49,019
Less: Capitalised interest (12,870) (35,254)
121,878 74,488
Fair value adjustment of restricted
bank deposits (Note 11) 6,933 —
Redemption premium of convertible bonds — 16,478
Other ancillary borrowing costs 1,150 3,250
129,961 94,216
Interest rate per annum at which
finance costs were capitalised 6.1% 6.1%

Income tax expense
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group has no assessable profit
in Hong Kong (2005: Nil). PRC income tax ranges from concessionary rate of 261

7.5% to statutory rate 33% (2005: 33%).

HBE 12 A 31 HI4ERE
Year ended 31 December

BEIEBA SRR T
L PRy
EIEPTRBL (5L 20)

Tax charge comprises:
Current PRC income tax
Deferred income tax (Note 20)
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Income tax expense (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using applicable income tax rates, and the difference is set

out as follows:

RE 12 4 31 HIE4EE
Year ended 31 December
2006 2005
Profit before taxation 236,006 259,981
Calculated at applicable income tax rate 77,023 85,794
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 2,943 —
Income not subject to tax (5,776) (6,642)
Unutilised tax losses of subsidiaries 5,382 5,193
79,572 84,345

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year is dealt with

in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately Rmb188

million (2005: Rmb 187 million)

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to
shareholders of Rmb159 million (2005: Rmb177 million) and 1,331 million shares
in issue during the year (2005: 1,331 million shares).

2006 2005

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 158,689 177,475
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue (million) 1,331 1,331

Basic earnings per share (Rmb per share) 0.12 0.13

R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

27 WBRAM (50 27  Earnings per share (Continued)
o P 250 R MR R A A ) VL Diluted earnings per share is calculated adjusting the weighted average number of
I AR R E BT IR ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
REFY B o A R — B0 T shares. The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
VB E S TR o TR convertible debt. The convertible debt is assumed to have been converted into
SRR St Sy R > T B A8 o ordinary shares and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense less
REDLBSH R S BB B2 the tax effect.
BE 12 A 31 HILARRE
Year ended 31 December
2006 2005
AN R A AN 2R Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 158,689 177,475
AR ERRR B (IERBLR) Interest expense on convertible debt (net of tax) 13,787 17,061
FH DA 52 T P 1 £ 2 Profit used to determine diluted earnings per share 172,476 194,536
SEfTEE R ISR (T Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (thousands) 1,330,666 1,330,658
T — B TR R (TR Adjustments for — assumed conversion of
convertible debt (thousands) 96,389 61,858
L PO 1 ) A Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
TR (F5h diluted earnings per share (thousands) 1,427,055 1,392,516
TR R A (R RWETT) Diluted earnings per share (Rmb per share) 0.12 0.13
28 A 28 Dividend
AR > TATR IR AR During the year, dividend amounting to Rmb 53 million (Rmb0.04 per share)
53,000,000 7C (HB AR H#0.04 70) A were paid (2005: Rmb133 million (Rmb0.1 per share) ). A dividend in respect of
R 133,000,000 ¢ (HRARKO0.1 2006 of Rmb0.04 per share, amounting to a total dividend of Rmb53,226,641 is
JE) e 2006 FRBREERA R 0.04 to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. These financial
TG AT NREE 53,226,641 TOHE R statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

AFERAT I BOR AR & b el IR %t «
S AR W TE A RS
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(BR TS SR A7 B 49 2 AR T 5E)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Cash generated from operations
BE 120 31 HIL4EE
Year ended 31 December
2006 2005

Profit for the year 156,434 175,636
Adjustments for:
- Taxation 79,572 101,086
- Depreciation and amortisation 139,339 70,892
- Impairment of assets 7,760 —
- Sale of service settled by investment

properties in lieu of cash (16,314) —
- Investment income from associate company (4,474) —
- Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 971 706
- Interest income (5,403) (8,563)
- Interest expense-net 129,961 93,934
Operating profit before working capital changes 487,846 433,691
Increase in inventories (11) (6,028)
Increase in accounts receivable, other receivables

and prepayments (277,425) (183,829)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable, advances from

customers and other payables 70,907 (37,265)
Cash generated from operations 281,317 206,569
In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
comprise:

2006 2005

Net book amount (Note 6) 2,505 1,079
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (971) (706)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant

and equipment 1,534 373

TR A S BRI A A PR 2 ]

SEBAFEH
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30 RIS 30 Commitments
EA R Capital commitments
BUFEEAGERD  AEBEARERN The Group’s capital expenditure at the balance sheet date in respect of construction
EASH T - projects is as follows:
CRAAR B [RE(RY S 31
Contracted but not provided for Authorised but not contracted for
Asat 31 December ~ Asat 31 December ~ As at 31 December ~ As at 31 December
it 2006 4 Ji% 2005 4F i 2006 4 Ji% 2005 4
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12]31H
2006 2005 2006 2005
ANRWH L ARWEE T AR B ARBHEE T
Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million
TSKIEHBUEE Sewage water processing plants in:
—RET - Ji Zhuang Zi 4 5 — —
1 - Xian Yang Lu 2 56 — —
g - Bei Cang 2 18 — —
ik - Chi Bi 59 — — —
— B - Fu Yang — 61 — —
— M - Bao Ying — — — —
— - QuJing — 290 — _
— M - Hang Zhou 341 — — 180
— ik - Hong Hu 16 — — —
KRR - Recycled Water Factory:
— s - Xian Yang Lu 67 — — _
b - Bei Chen 2 5) 107 — T
B A ) HK subsidiary =
EAER capital contribution — 62 — —
493 492 107 180
31 BT RS 31 Related party transactions
AN T B H AN v 2 T B SEHHE BLUE The majority of the business activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are
AT (Gifmn (BAA%ED - & conducted with state-owned enterprises (thereafter “SOE”). The Company and its
O8] R A E L E R R AR & P subsidiaries have established procedures to determine, to the extent possible, the
B L7 2 5 A B AT A2 o B TIE A identification of the ownership of its customers and suppliers as to whether they
5 > B KB - B T BB 58 %) are SOE. Management believes that all material related party balances and
KO b s transactions have been adequately disclosed.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Related party transactions (Continued)
In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere in the financial
statements, the following is a summary of significant related party transactions
entered into in the ordinary course of the business between the Company and its
subsidiaries and their related parties during the year and balances arising from
related party transactions at the end of the year.
(@)  Transactions with TMICL and its supervisory entities:
& 12 7 31 HIL4ERE
Year ended 31 December
2006 2005
ARWHEEL  ARWHET
Rmb’million Rmbmillion
Revenue earned from TSC for sewage
water processing services and construction
of sewage plant 591 506
Convertible bonds held by TMICL — 209
(b)  Transactions and balances with other state-owned enterprises:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 823 14
Purchase of construction materials 15 10
Purchase of raw materials and accessories 7 19
Payment for plants construction 146 113
Drawdown of short-term loan 615 40
Drawdown of long-term loan 1,050 80
Interest expenses 119 54
Balance held in trade and other payables 202 166
() Key management compensation is disclosed in Note 31(c).
Subsequent event
As of the first quarter of 2007, convertible bonds with a par value of
Rmb217,534,000 were converted into 55,309,987 of the Company’s “A” shares.
R A SR BR BeAD A R A W)

SEBAFEH
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33 EAEPEBAY 33  Ultimate holding company
JA 2006 4F 12 3 31 H » A #EHEHK Asat 31 December 2006, the Directors of the Company regard Tianjin Municipal
BT BB A PR A Sy A w Y B 4 4 Investment Company Limited (“TMICL”) as the ultimate holding company.
AT -

34 A B Bk 34  Approval of consolidated financial statements
HRH 2007 4F4 7 18 H&E i A v s 58 The accounts were approved by the Directors of the Company on 18 April 2007.

B -
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